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Company and Investors’ Information

ik Exclange Listing
'{]IJ.L.II:I.L.HI:I Milks Limited is 2 lested commpany and is shares
are tradied oncall the three stock exchanges of Pakistan

Uik suektes om the company s siock can be obtined
from lealing newspapers. Shakangan| i+ listed under
Saegar i Alliced

Informatio

Financial anabysts, Stock brokers interested investors and
fiseanicial media dhsiring information about “Shalargang’
should contacy Tarig Aleem at Company's registered
Office, Lahore, Tel: (142-58T050 1.3

Emiail: iarbvgalecmie hotmail com

shareholder Information

Inquirics concerming lost stock certficate. divicend
payment change of address, verifcation of ransfer degids
and share transfer should be dirccted 1o Shareholder
Services Department 31 the Registered Odfice a0 Lihore.
Tel: 92042-57 12036 & SHTTO8T Fax; 920423877525
E-muil: cresoemt businessio vahoo.com

Prodducts

L SR
3 Erhana
2 PFarviche Beird

annual Generd Meeting S
Hoeh Annual Generil Meting of Shakanganj Mills Limited
will be hedd o Thursekey, Janary 29, 2004 at 11440 2.m

ar Peard Continenaal Hoael Liboee

Mills

Management House, Toba Road
Jhang, Fakistan

TElD20HT 161497 1614473

Tx: 4347 IGIP PE Fax: 9240471620272
E-mail: ssugar(ejng paknet.com, pk

Registered Office

Uimir # 6, Hapgy [Momes;

A6-A-3 Main Gulherg, Lahore, Pakistan
Tel: 920425712036 & S8770%7
Fax: 924425877425

Ll Addvisors
Hassan & Hassan Advocates, Lahore

Hankers - =
3 Muslim Commercial Bank Lid

3 United Bank Lid

3 Union Bank L

3 Bank Alikab L.

2 Favsal Hank Lil.

3 Askari Commercial Bank Lid

¥ Mational Bank of Pakistan Lud

4 Mecran Bank Lud.

2 Somer Bank Ld
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Operating Resulis
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Production Data 1974-2003
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Statement of Value Added

Sales revenue

(ther receipts

Less: Materials and services
Value Added
Applied the following way:

To employees:

Salary, wages and related costs

To Government:

Income tax, sale tax and other taxes

To providers of capital:
Finance charges on loans and advances

Tix charitable institution
Provision for deferred cost

To provide for maintances and expansion of assets:

Depreciation/amortization
Profit retained

(Rupees in million)
2002

211884 261580

B0.75 31.96

220559 264776

1,420.99 1,735882

78460 REH 0
(Rs.inmillion)  %age  (Rs inmillion) % age
%.0i 1206 85,55 .62
343,72 4381 340,66 057
12259 15.62 17367 15.54
874 L2 78 031
- . 80 043
8583 | | 109 7184 808
12904 1645 110,65 1245
21487 2739 182,49 2053
THG0 100.00 B8 94 100.00

1
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| ummarizes reseanch and development activities being conducted a1 ShakSireang Sugar Research
Kl} wath emphasts on min geels thar were rea el durng the vear 2 NE aclivities
i N VAR AsPect OF cane prodection
EANCANL developmient Hanbogacal comerol of borers and perilla
I p tron of ehite clones stuches on disease iolermme
N IseC FeAEsingGe RO il
i water advisory <ervis '-".-.l|4-.~|.:|!':-ur| R&D act
n of Fakistan Sugar Journal Libvrary of the fnsitute
o n
Py ki ward thatl o sugsifeane vanen SPS0A rdsed from fuee of COPERSLCAR By vl anet dovel ipecid
i testing hias Been e by the Governmient of B i wlinvatiom
1we of il i the recommendation of Sugar Crops Research Institure (SCR1 Mardlin
W I r vunkher af more mEsing Variees of sugarcane: under ||||_|'=-'-||i|:.; [
5 Ar good ratooner and exrly maturing with resistance w mator diseases
i

s peliaded ar instinene o July 13, 1985 1y b |

SIS |

wovedl very sueceasful from
ter virious disy tphines are winrking !..:_:|-||-| i 1o deve
1al fuze, 10

{3 e GO vanetes

crisses Of seleciod parentage were purchased (0 3000 1S$ per cnass from
fiment Station (BSES) Queensland, Astrabin. Fues of Ti-hi-pa

e cromses rom LSO Cand
] Crorsses from Ag-Center Hlouma, USA, were impories] unsder 3 COdPFAlVE progrimme
status of ¢lones under dilferent seleciinn staecs 15 prven in e |

o 2Ech 1o Faly 5k

2004, A vodal of orieenal se

s hagp

wrgimal seedlings raised was frovm thie ez ol By ES, s

| were 453740, Amicnmsi

i A seedling popula

teil fromi Canal Point and Ap-Comer Houma USA n spectively
seeudlingls were spread as single stools 1 1.5 x 34ee Mot An wlbey of G-feet ws kept afier 2
servabions. The palv-bag seedlings were transplanted on 9 acres from hugust 151
roly Grm of R5RI1
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k]
uear Research Institute s
L= | L L s U RRESLELLILE B

| seedlings of cane h obtaned from Ael enter

= )
cliones were planted at 7 x 4 fee [l S, o oan area of 3 acnes

I progenies were spread on 1194 lur

yanal Poine DSA frable 0, The [HTHRC T

clnng surrunen 20604

vilvanoed clon
M stage-IIL from 371 progeny clones, 933 were advanced (able-1); The pbon was 20 % 4 feet of Serows, Advanced
clomes were spread on 5.5 acres, during the vear under report. Data on agronsomic traits of the advanced lines was

revirhed

d. Fromusing oo a]
- M '~|.E;!.\"|"l..llllll'|"‘1_'i'l.ll.hJ.Iill'llI|l s, A% were sedected for semi-limal traks sl ), Semii-dimal clomsis weonlil

b Furthier studicd § CEMENARRAT CAPKICIEY :-|!IIII-:§'--I|':|I|.|’ --I|:|'|.-:I-..||l-.'-|-.|-‘ MALUEY rengl, sacross oontent

andd resistance against mapor discases like red ro, rust, savar and pokah bocmg
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Shakarganj Sugar Research Institute o

‘Table-1  Status of Germplasm under
Different Selection Stages at SSRI Jhang .

Selection  Seedling YearSource of fuzz Year .
Stage 2002-2003
Stage-5 Final clones 2

i SUBCS5G, Davis Laborasory Townsville, Austealia 2 "
Stage-d Semi-final Clones

b S00HoSG, AgCenter Houma, USA 10

il 399050, BSES, Queensland, Australia 33

Tovtal 45

Stage-3 Advanced clones
i, 52001 HoSG, ApCenter, Houma, US4 252

. S2001CPSG, USDA, Canal Point, USA 129 s’ ®
i S200IN5G; SASAEN, Natal, South Africa 43
iv. S200108G, HSES, Queenstand, Ausiralia 5 -
v, S2001CS86G, Davis Laboratory Townsville, Australia #1 3
Total 933

Stage-2 Progeny clones
1, S2MEANSG, SASAEX. Natal, South Africa
iil. 2002056, BSES, Queenslind, Australia
ili. 32M02H0SG, AgCenter, Houma, USA 194
i, SHM02CPSG, USDA, Canal Point, USA
Toual 1194

Stage-l  Original seedlings =
i. S2003Ho8G, ApCenter, Houma, USA 31788
il SA0RCPSG, USDA, Canal Podnt, LUSA 10507
il S2H0FCSG, BSES, Quecnsland, Australia 79
Total 45374

. Promising clomes Tor faal studies

estage W, from 15 semi-final clones vig CS330G008 amd C38G-676 were kepd for final triabs (table-1). Both the
promising varcties have shown better pedoemance for cane ysebd and quality along with restsiance against major
disczses, Thses final clomes were mcluded i coordinaned wials. Extensave testing and seed multiplicuion was in
progiess, Agro-economic trbly ol progres. Agro-coonomic insies and perssdic irend of sugar recovery perceni caine

S

of CS50-008 and CH3E07H was compared with standind check SPSG-20 during the yeass 2000- 3603, 1t is given in
Gl -2 amall Fig 1, respectivedy
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Shakarganj Sugar Research Institute i

Table-2, Agro-Economic traits of CS5SG-668 and {ISSG-E-T&' L
final stage compared with standard SPSG-26 (2001-2003) '

CSS0-668 i 250 42771 1.15 1230 MR R R
CSS5G676 59 199 4360 124 138 R R ]
- SPRG-26 8 250 37150 1.0 1021 R B M5

1. Binlogical contrel

1. Blological comirol of borers

Eebinlogecal comrl boners through Trichogrnm dillongs have proved coonnmical, elfective s codiosmsen Bricilly
Tricho-cands agged o sugarcane crop in 28 cane devilopmcenn circles of SMEwene 2106395 convering 15, 527 acmes
firer Masrch g Nl-'|'|fl.'!1|J'E'r 2L The trichi-cands wine jrrosslee) o cang growrs il ML ara |-||‘-_|-.|-. stibmbiliocd price
of Rs. 3 percand. Dot recorded on infiestation of avers i cie ficlds indicatal damage ol st wots inder eoononi
threshald level It shows cificacy of parasiie being released regularly in cane liclds from 1996

New Projecn:

il Bhological Control of Pyrifla

Pyrilla perpusilia s one the mast infesting pest of simgar cane crop. The mongement las apiproaeil 3 new sesisrch
project for control of Pyrifla perpusilla. Sever inbestation of the pest was elservesd from grand grewih phase il
iy ol the SUZARCIME, J!I.'!t'rlllrilinjl.: bk vaelil el jualiey of erop {lwemmcal conpil ol the pest was found
ineffective ancd costly

Kueping this in view it wais dicslid 1o stan Irtorbopicail coepl al Perlla perpusile I b pussible with mearing of adulis
ol an insect known as Green Lace-Wing (Chrysoparks Carmes)y, fs aoulis and arvae botb the stages ar agrnessive
proechatinr of epps andd nyenpls of Pynle
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Kea

It i Twopl, large-scale mvaliplicamion of this ust

I Ghrysoparia in rensparent plastc cages under -.||l||."|-.||!. condition hs been sarted successiuoliy

U0 an SsR1 Fleld application prococol will be standardized at gramal growth phase of the ¢n
{ul r:-'.'-|.ll- of ol pviidla for thie come pronvers e S8 wonild be siamed
maize and

Aujgusg 2
MO OF SLZARCANT, Al

Iddivion, Chrvsaparla s equally good for effective contro

10 naear hemene, sl
vonea, specifically for Haliothus spevies like Amienican besll-waors

b Tissme caliure Laboratory

I mvuliplication of eline cise vareties with higl

This: project was sgarted o Febroary N1, Maln obdecive is
15 it cane growers of SML Cane varieties included (o tissue culiune RPN wene X504

= Tl plantbets productson was 66820, Excosedd plar

'”!l"-" 1M ”.‘II:" WS 4 e T

uali
MalaAt, NSG-AT, NSG-S85 CPE237 and HSE24

il 1
foer Bambening were 33626, Plantlers survival rate vas 62 e

Ha 1000 6200 was obagined with sale af 12,27 acees secd GoBs S0 e
wits achicved dunng the vear under repo

tissune culiored cane seed o goower's (el

b Stodies on discase moleranc
Different sclection siages of cane varsethes were included foe creen e against mapor discase. Amongst 4108 entnes
T cante vamethes e final LU LT T |

only 397 have shown combineed resstant w0 red or, s, pokla boel

showing combsned resistance
ler report s given b table-3

T i i
Iy 35 were resistant, Out of 158 sem il chones, sereemed] Bor combined reststanoe werg

i}
I'.II!II-: I!I-\, VICar UM

afbinded lfies fesked
10, Series-wise derail of screening against major disegses o

Chut of 371 1-proggenies lines, 351 have shown combined resistance, And from 259

B ™
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5. Origin N of Resistance 1o
Na, Clones Redrot Rust P boeng St Combined
1 Promising Yaricties S96NSG senics i & 3 3 4
g 2 Final clones S98C550 series 15 ) 12 8 ] 7
- - Semi final clones S99 HOSG series 15% 10 17 113 120 1l
L] Aihvance Hnes S2000H050 serics 254 35 231 1™ 210
5 Progeny dones S2001H0SG serics iTn 31 2 §24 47 331
f SCRI, Mardan Varicties 5 2 3 § 3
T SRI, Fuisalabad Varicties 12 T 9 11 ]
] Habiby Sugar, Nowabshah Varictes i 3 ] b 1
9 5el Lanka clones (51 series) 2 2 2 | 2
At
Total 4168 199 608 T48 738 97
1
tudlies o insect resistan
Clones ncluded in the il
nfestation of ton boner siem hoa
y U |




L [ourth 2-chiy workshop was ongandze v S8R, The subect was “Restarch and Developmcnt Activiebes on Sugar
Crowes in Pakistan”™. I was el ¢ "\-;'|'|:Il!'! S0, D02 Shakargang Supar Research Institon e abjechive wis

is ool R & 1D activitdes 4

r TS

1 Bitl iy ¥ v T T i
Insgiiutes from all over the cou Filteen

el The wiess af all the concerned scientises working on this onop

ks were piehlisheg as priceedings of the workshop

Pakistan Sugar Foumal wis jaableshed %

some ket squlf ncludbing books, manuals, proceedings, research jounnals and audsosideo gids were added n ihe

tive ix o prinvicle excellent reading material 10 member of the Bibrary, Material available

libeary of the instime. Obje

x st O s stgar ndustry.  Following & the summary of reading material ag the lbeary of 5511

Howeks 70
Procecdings Faij,
lemirnals on management 17
lowrnal on sugarcans sugar industry 12

m Video Casseties 118

Madliny Casseties b




>

Quality Policy

Ohur cpuality policy stems from our vision and &
o maniain ndustry keadership and customes
satisfuction throagh production of high ejucliny
sugzer andd allied prodhoees an bowest cosi, Lising
evironmenially fendly ter havodogy and safc
working concluctions. Wi run our business with
Infegrity and professionalism and belicve i
contimual improvemaent and 3 fir deal for oor

InvEstions, customers, supgicrs and e nplovees.

¥ e
1\\___———'—'_--_
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Our Governing Principles

SM L conducts its business in a responsible manner with honesty and integrity. We also expect the same from our
husiness partners, e set the cone for all our actions and the actons of all our employees by insisting on doing what
s right. We also instst that all iransactions be open and transparent, and this extends 1o our responsibalities reganding
financial reporiing. We understand our responsibilitics o the sharehalders and ensure that all transactions not only
comply with all laws but are also Birly and accorately reflected in the sccouns.

[iteprit : SML docs nod use heibe as an instroment foe any bisiness of fnancial grin. Emplovecs are not authoried
1 geive oF receive any gift or payment which may be construed as such. Employees are also recuined o avosd engaging
in any personal acivity or financial interests which would conflice with their responsibility w the company k3

Hole of the Board of Directors: The Board has 2 Aduciary responsthility for the proper direction and contmol of
the activities of the Company. This responsibility includes such areas of stewardship as e identification and control
of the company s business risks, the integrity of management information systems and dear tmnspanent reporing
to sharcholders. The Board acoepts its primary responsibility for the overall control architecture of the Company

However, it recognizes that tse internal control system las o be oot
effective and thar no cost effective system will prechade all errors or
irregularitics. The system is based upon written procedures, policies, ‘
gutclelines, an organogram that provides an appropeizte division of L‘f-f
responsibility, a programme of intemal audit, and manning of all key
functions by qualificd personnel and constant training. *-

Code of Condoct: The Board has adopted a code of conduc for s
members, excoutives amd stall, specifving the busingss standands and
ethical considerations in conduciing its business, The code includes

| Corpogate Governanos
1 Redativnship with empbovess, customers, supgpliens and regulaties
A Trading in Company’s shares.
1 Environmental responsibilities,
Responsibility to Stalichalders: Our primary purpose is 10 run our s

business efficiently and profitably to enhance sharcholder value but
we do it with responsibility 1o all sukeholders. Profitability is essential
tiv dischange this responsibility and the comorate resources are primaily
deploved wowards achieverent of this end. However the Company
does not operate in tsolation within its enviconment and sceordingly
feels respaonsible 1o all is stakehodders which are:

Our Sharcholders

Ohur Customers

Chur Management and Staf q‘.(#
Our Business Pariners

Our Soccty

| B T W =
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Our Governing Principles

Servl 1 Seciely: We are ncreasingly conscious of the role we have o play as responsible corpomte cltieen in
fulfilling a wide variery of community needs, We beliove in belping address ssues such o education, healthcare,
publec safery, and environmental health, This also conforms to our basic beliel that individual entitics when they
work together 48 3 team can create powerful synergics and help improve the condition of the so ety in which they
AR |ur|-\.|||s|1||:._1l_

Wi havve over the years actively strived o promote ssues of clucrion, health and envimnment. A major portion of
our budget for phitinthropy and sponsorship is allocated 1o primary and secondary sehooling for less privileged
children

I apd Safery: Maintenance of health and safiery standards ar our plamis andl offces is a semous Bsue a SMI
W are committed o aotively managing bealth anid safety risks assoctated with our hasiness sned are acthely working
povwards improving our procedures to reduce, remove or control the risk of fiees. accidents or infuries (o emplinees
and visisors. Wee alsi ensure that our products are transported in 2 safe manner complying with the safiry standards
and fegal requirernsents

Rasla: oif 5h.

lers: The Board aims to ensure that sharchobders are informed of all major developments affecting
the company's st of 2

ifs, Information i communbcated to the sharcholders in the annual repeart and the interim
reports. The Board encourages shareholders paricipation at the annual geneeal meetings to ensure 3 high level of
accoumntabilisy and informatkon dissemination
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Our Governing Principles

Currenr Products: Shakarganj Mills is currently primarily engaged in the mianulzciuring and marketing of white
refined sugar and sugar by-products, The company is also manufacturing and marketing other produces such s
ethaned and parich: buard and continues to diversify its product and marker poriolio

bairrend Strateyy: We curmently aim o proscrve our leadership position m e industries we compete in by proddiscing
e best quality prewducts while investing in human resource development, wchnnbogy, production and marketing
expurtise. We develop our human resources by investing in reaining and expertise development of ou peophe. W
also consider our Barmers, our rmw material suppliers, as our important partners and we sharne oar research finddings
frevm o Saggar Research Institute with them wo increase the equictliny el vield eof thedr evops, Shakargani Sugar Research
Instktute continues o keep our Grmers and Shakarganj Mills Limived (SML e e forefromt of siijgar fesearch and
technology. Our speratitins management personng) recognize the value of rechnadogy and improvement in production
processes and continue to keep pace with Lites inpovitions amd developments by the feld. SML also maximizes
generion and wilization of coeproducts snd by-produces minimiing waste utilising resources eMectively and
efficiently and reducing overall cost of production. Our marketing team continues to strengthen our position in
markets than we cureently exer (o, while developing new producs and predfiahbe markets. Al oure peesonncl amd
our farmers operaie 25 2 cam o maingin SMUs leadership position in the industries i compeles in

o
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; hakasrganj Mills Limited

he cirectors of the Company have the pleasure in submitting their report wogether with audited accounts of the

Company for the year ended Seprember 540, 2003

The finandial resulis of the company are summardsed below
Rupees in Thoasand)
1A ELLIE Eaming Par Share

150,251 124,673

27 191

Prafir lor the yesir

- Prodear alter nixation 1245 D4l 1 -
Unappropriated profit brought forasnd 115,624 i
Prodit weilable for appropration 294,00 226,253 -

'\:I- Ly
Appropriations k]
Iranslormed o reserve Iof COUEY vEsimEnts 1 20 00 (57 (MW
slerred oo penerl reser (174, 700) {0, TIKK)
13,525
[ 244 .62 {1 R G625
- - Yoar
55 115,024
——
a -
Eariing per sl {41 1. 78
dividend per share — Propaosed 150 1.50
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Directors’ Report To Shareholders

Simtemenl on Corpiral and fnancinl reporiing
framework

Jd The financial seitenienis, prepared by ihe
managermcent of the company, present Eairly ins stine
il affairs, the resuls of it's operagions, cish fows
dnel changes in couiiy

A Progeer Books ol acooams of the Company have been
il

- ||.|!||'l|'-.|!'l.|'iJI|.' ACCOUnNIng |||||||. ies have been
consistently applied in prepacanon of Gnancial
statements and aecounting estimates ane based on
||.';u.||dl.{|_ﬂ|_' .||'||,| ||ru-:!|;|:|r 1|.I:I!.l;|||l;rll

A International Adccounting Sandards; as applicablc
by Pakistan, have boen Iodlowed in progaraion of
|||u:|1'i;;| sEARCPCTES *ml ANy :li,'|'|.ul,|_|1|' ﬂs-l;u_' s
has been adequately disclosed

=1 The system ol internal control = sound i design
andl T been effertively implemented and monioned

J Theere wne posignificon doulss ugson the Company’s
abiliey w0 continue as 4 going concern

| |1!||,'1|; lias |h:'|,'|1 i fraterial i'!l.'|'l.|f||:||'|.' !.ll:llll 1 Isesr
PrACTices o corporate povernakee, as decaied in the
Estiag reguliio

A Dwerarls il m!.'_rlllih anl iproveiienis thie G TR £
opperanons during e current vear are sted in the
el Executives Beview

J Koy operating and financial do for ke seven vears
i summarized form s snnexed on page-

3 Indormution aboi tases and levies & given in the
mees to the [inzncial spemenl

J The iemal number of cnplovees at the end of vear
wias DA (20002 : G30)

d The ||:!l|l||U.'|I'|H s the value ol mvesnments hasid on
audited acooums

Year Ended
Sepiember 2001
Seprember N5
Nl.-'||t|:'|1li'n;4 Nk

Arviounl {(Hs.)
3,62 2,604
22 108,489
B2 362 860

Desceipilon
Prosvidhent fund
Carmtuiry i
Pension fund

< During the year three Board Mectings were held
ancl dbetail o atpembance by cach direoior is 2 iollows

Mr. Mazhar Karim

2
Mr. Ahsan M. Saleem 3
Mr. Gul Nawax 3
Mr. Khalid Bashir 3
Mr. Mubammad Anwar 3
Mr. Muhammad Arshad 3
Mr. Muhammead Asif 3
Mr. Muhammad Bilal Sheikh I

Patiern of $hareholding

Ihe partern of sharcholding as por section 236 of the
Companies Ondimance, 1984 18 arached separicly o n
page-s1

N trage in the shares of the Company wene carrical ou
B CECK, CFO and Compeny Secretary, thiir spouscs and
mnor O hildren

Direciors

Sine the lase report, s change in disecionship has aken
Pl

The present ieem of the 7 elected direcions will expine
o June 01, 2005

Audlitnr

The auditors M. Riae Abmed & Company, Charired
Accoumeants, will retire and not offer themselves for res
appoimtment in compliance sith the requirement of
clause (Xh) of the Code of Corporate Goverance
regarding rotation of audivees. We plice our sincere
thanks and uppreciation for their services, The Awsdit
Committee of the Board his recommendid the
appowiment of A, F. Fergusion & Co as audswores for the
visar endeil h'plq'mh\'r . Mim

By oercler of thee Board

S T PrR SE AT PR

Ahsan M. Saleem
Chiel Executive

Labare
December 29, 2003

-
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j:,.f Shakarganj Mills Limited

Chief Executive’s Review

Dezar Sharchnlders,

I el privileged to present the yearly performance review for your company for the period ended September 2003,
Yious wil b dlelighred to kniw that your company has set a new recond for prea eamings. This indeed is an outcome
of a joint team effon of the management, emplovees and our farmer community.

Wiz strongely belicve that a most viluabde component of cor industrial process is te Brmer and it is extnemely impsoman
ter focus on his needs and requirements. Our thrust therefore has been on prividing financial support and skill
develogament 1 this key parner of sugarcane indusiry.

The stress of the company an unilization of the co-products to reduce average cost of production continued and
incressed benefits of this policy are expected w acerue in the vears o come,

—
] N “Highest
g, profitability in
3. company’s
P — history

Financial Year

Nativnal Economic Scenario

A brosd based economic recovery, further strengthening of macroeconomic stabikity and & near climination of external
account vulnerability has been the major successes of the owgoing fiscal year 200203, These successes include: 2
sharp pickeup in growth, aided by seellar growth in manufacturing and a robust recovery in agriculivre; double-digit
growth in per capita income, low inflation, highly conducive interest rites enviconment, 1ax collection T ning
on track, Hscal deficit reduction, exports and imports registering impressive growth, workers' remittances touching
new heights, and substantial improvement in the country’s foreign exchange reservis, The rupee strengibencd by
lmest 4 perceny, domestic and waeenal debr declined, foreign direct investment increased, the stock market rose
substantially and the eredit cating in internasional capital mackets improved, Sugarcane production stood at 52,049
million tons as against 48.042 million tons of last year, thus registering an impressive growth of 8.3 percent.
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Chief Executive's Review

Company Performance (herview

b bricl performance of different activities of the company is
prresenlid below

vigar Livlsinn

e Bctory operated for 187 days agalnst 188 days last year, The
mills crustwedd £.6706 million metric mons of sugarcane against 1,705
milleon metric tons crashed last vear, This shight dilferemce of
28 (0N nownes b e 1o loower cane availabiliey especially in the cady
dhays of Ociober. However, with slight improvement in necovery,
rate Irom 7.55% o 7.38% we could produce slmost the same
armvitint ol sapgar as last vear

Frthamol Divisiom

Ethanod division worked at an expanded capacity and produced
Mo 2338 midllion Nires of cthanol againag 15 800 million Hires
prochuced last vear. This i aninorease of about 66 percent, This
diversification has contributed wowands profit of the compny
redluc ng tirtal |||.'|'H'|Il!n'r|| ¢ oon sugar manulaciure

Substantial production of ethanol & exparted reducing dependency
ot bl miirkets ol increasing the nation’s exports o reducing
the trade defici |.|1II'II:I_I{ ther vear M| L"\i1'l||."ll'-::| vilianal 1w the
tune of Bs. 269,064 miflion

Particle Boanld Dhsision

Thas divisicin utilizes the surplus Bagasse, mace available from
sugar factory after mectng the fuc roqurements of sugr and
ethanol clivisions, The cxpanced capacity of ethanol division
regidred more fuel, thiss more Bagasie was diveried iowards
prividing thds exon requirement of fuel. A small guangity of
Bagasse was available which enabled the plant 1o ran only for a
short period. 1t produced 1668 Cubie Meter of board againse
5070 Cubde Meler Bast year

This westr effoarts are betng macde o gain fereher economy of fuel
which i 1,'\|}|;Uu1 1 bsave more \ul‘!!ulu.\ 1‘:IH:-I"M‘ [ the ¢ nerlilig]
il thix divisson

Liv it Filends

Wi were bl 1o sl moee electricity than Bss vear, thus ino

the income from Co-generation by about 10 peroent o Bs. 1 261
m million, Inoowr long wrm planning, we ane eonsidering giving

e attention W Co-Generation o increase the income of the

COHMRany e phas aecamn

1SET:

Il WA T

Matira Tona

Plillion Litres

mon

s

w@m

Sugarcane Crughang

00

fotitel]

o

, =

AT g

Ethanal Production
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Chief Executive's Review

Financial Resnlts

The operatian for the vear resulted in g pre-tax profis of s,
156,241 million s aginst K 124,073 million Tt veae: This
t5 an increase of 25.31 percent. The carning per share has
st w1 T 440 aginst Bs. 378 last vear

Break-up Value

The scbmindstrative and selling expenses inercasied o Rs:63.562 N .
milliomn apgainst Ks 48620 million last vear which @ pnimarily
an account of ncecased depreciation and 3 soltware E T 2
develapment project which vour company has initiaed this E e, e s 1
yiear. The main reason s about Ba4 000 million increase in % - | | | ]
salarics, Hs 50Ny mifllion increase in l1Li:lI'l,'I'iJ.|iII!! anl abaoait -4 - 1 :
Ba 5000 million on software and upgrade of LT, system g { '\ ﬂ ‘
MCCERAATY D0 FEmn conspetitive s ‘ ‘

- (|
A SLrgE rellection of reduved inlermest rates @n the ecomomy e e - ey =0
is exhilsiied rf|r|a|:||..-_|| ||.:ll.'|'1.'r|.I1:\.; of pur financial l.'llarj.'.{'a L ik

Rs 122587 million against Bs 175675 million last vear

The siijrar poices remained very .Lh-]'-rnv;'.l and we mrhieved
u biwer price per ton of sugar this year 25 compared o/l
year but as comparcd 1o meast of othee mills, we enjoyed
prive premium due o our better guality peodoct

The ngt eash fow from aperstions increased to Bs 240,819
milliesr Drom Bs. 171052 mlilion lesa vear,

Industry Problcoms

(M- sugar industey of Pakistan is fcing Anancial crists for the last three years and especially units located in the
proowinee of Sindh are woder grean financial buarden. This is the second largest imefustry of Pakistun, having great impadt
ot thie ageo-based ceonomy of our country, Dinsct relaionship with fimers on such a lame scale & nof seen in any
other inchestry, Sugarcane being a penshable produde requines very special trcatment. As a crop, it has the longes)
pestation pedod and a5 such requirements and expectations of the firmers are very high from this crop

& major problem b the lewer deld per hoctare. Ot of 16 cane producing countries Pakistan s a1 15t o vicld and
11th for recovery in cane. Agsinst our average vield of 47 wons, India produces 68,060 wns per heoare

This acreape in Pakistan repeesents eqghn percent of workd roald crop, but only four per cent of yichd, This 1s Liegely
Becanse of oo vield per acre which hovers around 19 tons, again much lower compared o the workd sverage of over
2% poirs. The bow vield speaks volumes of the condlition of the cropping efficiency.

Now better quality and bertes sidd vadeties need o be developed and wechnology needs m be improsed fo incrcise
proabisctivity messured in sugar yichd per some. An increase in vicll per acee will benefit il memisers in the value chain
Froem Earmers to distribaitors

Your company is plaving its part by investing in seed and soil research at the company's sugar research nstitute anc
alsoy thronnghs b Reld sehools for fanners. The ficld schools provide training and advice 1o Ermers regarding the full
eviele from sowing t harvesting of the sugar erop. The training is impared w groups of farmers with 25 membirs
per grownp, The benefits of the ssaining o furmers inweems of higher viekd will also improve the local coonomy in
the: lenmt term




Chief Executive’s Review

Shakarpanj carries o umicpue onour of having established a Sugar

Research Instinate at mills. The key functions of Shakargen) Sugar

Rescarch Institute (SSRI ane as follows
fir evolve fertilizer responsive, discase resistant snd sress

tolerant spgarcane varietics with kigh sucrose content

T irvesigte agroncmic problems of sugarcanc producton
Rescarch and development on unilization of bio-mass and
cMuens from sugar industey and igs use for supstainable
L L8 e
| T study soils in swgarcanc |‘:r|.'-c1|.h MR ATEas and 16 relate
thitse to Crogy markgement
o st tissue culiure propagation for rpad multiplication of

elire chones.

ficy souedy snd momitor the pest and diseases of sugarcne and
sy iy |_-|.;||'| appropridte control mcasures

Ty conduct basic reseanch on germination of Sugarcaine sets,
SLC TS 5'-r-;||!|,|-:||.|‘||'| rransiocation and SOrane and the
cnvar opnmental inft |'.It'rl'= ¢s on these pPrOCEsSSCS
1 T o wide advice omi the use of fe alieers ail |-|Ih-r.1:.:riu.||||:r.||
chemicals, irmigation, drainage, discase amd pest control, the
use of machines and equipment, Bnd amd water management
and other ASpecis of Crop |1r-:-||||| Liin '|!l|..||1|l-rl|.! anik
TN e

Tix publish and disseminate information on all aspects of
sugarcane: production

I el educational courses on VAo s s O SR
gronwing for growers

lis collabesrate and exchange information and maerial with
Research Organizations in Pakistan and other countries
| T impeove the wechnology of sugarcane produciion inside
the sgar ctories by improving process and milling cffrciency

iisgrFilsuibomn to TR
jil-:r|!_r| i r{-1|'||;;.n-.|'|1||_- member of the COrPariie COrmmuniny
Shakarganj alwass conir fbutes substantially towards the national
eoonoay on ooount of tes and other govermment levies. Daring
this vesar your company s comribution 1o Federal, Provincial and
Local taxes was to the mine of Rs. 343723 million. We spent Rs

27 5587 million a5 cost of fnancing and share of waorkers
compensation was RBs. 94.647 million. During the last ten vears
VO COMmpRny has made a consobickated congribution of Rs. 2 53
billion in shape of Federal, Provincial and Local raxes.
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LRI coampany considers prople waAbhle asser for

creating and delivering value ©i &, It sene the
A contingents (o both bat

Busengsa Mana ent specially deve

ement Scienees | LUMS)

LT B hes cach of seven days du

| Uiperations. Mar

1 Aciences and Commiandcs

menl Inform

g leanmark he participants also undbemake 7 ¢

responsibilities. The firc b

A3, The participeints oo

il s through

he second

The: continued investment in the skills enhancement of is poplc

rellects the valug vour con plaves on the development of j1s

! i
| wel

cxpuippedd library with latest books on al WIT Pisiness

LR
s mainizined lor the benefic of the wam members. The librriry

baosoks excoeds

subwscribes b0 some 130 periodioals and the collection «

W enEnCers Gin virkers is alsin beimg contirmied

shionwn results inomore efficiem rumning of the op

mpany. We have also staned impanting waining (o the growers

in the area o practice agricolture on mow scientific lies

[
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ok Your company by -|.'.--:"\. m mvesting in

uakity o ke and has aken several indi

ikic &
1L

L coRTipaEny inititeed 2 schoaol MR NPT [P

ML AT IES VeI (n

¢ then we el five Primary and five Mid

15 60t drea. Lher current enrdliment at primary aned micddl

| (S | 5 1 s gt | I (!
VL B O il S students respeatively, In these schools a

wstsures ave been taken (o im

s schioods. In tion, mikk is provided

nuritican, The milk

v all schools in future

ks sov har
Yorur

Wi students have been supplicd school uniforms ;

Y CAn avael o pnet educatons ApporTUniLis pron

g1

i
AL s impeartant i provide o viseally pleasing

enk at sch - ihe studenis i

| furniture an

lean washrooms and has allecaced fs venance of th

schikd Bciletics

With the puidamce of the Al Instiuee of

ICALIC, ORI COm)j

hits alsor stared a Teachers Teaining Centre within the oo

premeses, Tha g Iuates of this program will increase the quality qaf

andl secomdary schools, Our of 393 teachers
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K 1} I
FURng

§ ] i
W posrtion ol the 2004-0

v Increised prosludction of

gl 1y

b and by oihe stan

n firvele
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nother 100000 litres

This demands

h-ses miach cange Wi vt

I thirty vears apo has womn
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of ethanol per dav
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m pevcloed at an averape recovery

stz have b

ioa T million litees of cthanol
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have bieen prosdo

firdenge, W are in 2 good position in the marketplace and the only sugar company with
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AHSAN M. SALEEM
XOCULIvE
Diecember 2
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

Ihis statement is belng presened 1o comply with the Code of Corporate Governance as contgined in Hegulation
No 5T of the Listing Regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange and Chapter XI1 of Listing Regulations of Lahore
Stock Bxchange and Chapter X1 of Listing Regubations of Islamabad Stock Exchange for the purpose of establishing
A Iramework of pood governange, wherehy a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of
COMHArITE JROVOTiANGE,

T commpany has applicd the prnciples contained in the Code in the follow manner:

i

1.

The company encourages representaton of independent non-cxeouive direciens, A1 present all Directors an:
independent non-executive direcions

The divectors have confirmed thar none of them is serving a5 o diecetor in more than ten lsed comganies,
inclucling this company

ME phe residint elineon of the company are registered s topayers and none of them has deBulied in payment
of any loan to o banking company, a DFL or an NBFL, None of them s 2 member of 3 stock exchange,

Ko canesal vacancy occurned during thee year ended September 30, 2003

The company has prepared a “Saatement of Ethics and Business Practiees, which has heen signed by all the
dhirectors and emplovees of the company,

Phe Bosarel bas deseloged 3 view misskon stitement, overall corporaie stmicgy, and sigrificant policies of the
company; A Complete recond of particulars of significant palicies alognwith the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised aml decisions on material transaciions, including
appaimament and determination of remuneration and rerms ancl conditions of employment of the Chiel Executive
Ciffcer (CECY have been taken by the Boand

The mewtings of e Board were prosided over by the Chaieman aid, in his sbsence by a direcor eleaed by
e B feor this paorpose: and the Board mer once in every quarter cering the year ended September 30, 2003,
Written nogices of the Board Mectings, alongwith agends and working papers, were ciroslsted at least seven
dhays belore the meetings, The Minotes of the meetings were appropriiely recorded and circulated.

The membrees of the Hoard have asended oriensmion course during the year to apgrise tem of their duties
andd responsibilinics

e board has approved appoiniment of CFO/Company Secretary and the head of Internal Audic, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, as recommended by CEO.
The Direetors’ Repon for the year ended September 30, 2003 has been progared in compliznce wirh the
requirements of the Code and it fully describes the salient matters required 1o be discloscd.
Mo financial stavemints of the company were duly endoesed by the CEO aned CFO befone approval by the Board,
The Directirs, CEO and executives cle not held any interest in the shares of the company, other than thae
dischosed in the panern of sharehokfing.

The company has complied with all the corporate and financlal reporing requirements of the Code

T Berrd has formed an audit committee. 1t comprises of theee members, all of whom ane sonexecutive
directors including the Chairman of the Comminee. The Awdit Chaner of the Company requines that at least
two members of the Awdin Commdnies must be Gnancially Terate,

The meetings of the audit commitiee were held a1 leas once every quarter prior 1o approval of interim and
fincal resules of the company and as required by the Code. The weems of reference of the comminee ave Bbeei
furmeil andl advised 10 the commitice for compliznee
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
pF g

17, The Board has setup an effective intenal aueic fanction by appodning a full-time Head of Imernal Audir

18 The statutory siditors of the company have confirmed diar they have been given A satisficioey rring under
the quality comtrol review peogranime of the Institute of Charered Accountants of Faikistan, that they or am
of the paniners of the firm, their spousis and minor children do not hodd shares of the company and that the 3
firms and ull fts partnens dre in compliance with Imemaional Federation of Accountants (IEALC) guidlelines on
code ol ehics 2 alopted by the Instinate of Charered Accouniams of Pakisan.

19 Thee surutory abitors or the persons associsted with them have not been appoinged 1o provide other services
exeept in accordance with the Bsting regulagions and the audiors have confirmed thag thiey have observed 1R,
guidelines in this regand

I We confirm that all other material principbes contained in the Code have heen complicd with.

Hy wrder of the Board
b " PE NEEUPe

Ahsan M. Saleem

Chivl Executive Officer

Jarel - 20,2

Dacedd - Devember 29, 2004 5 -

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance With the )
Best Practises of the Code of Corporate Governance .

Wi haves revicwed i statement of eompliance with the best practioes contained in the code of CorporIEe governance
prepared by e Bodad of Directors of SHAKARGAN] MILLS LIMITED comply with the Listing Begulation o 57
(Chapter K1) of the Karachi Stock Exchange, Listing Regulation Mo, 43 (Chapter X111 of the Lahore Stock Fxchange
and Listing Regulaion Moo 36 (Chapter X1) of the stamabad Stock Exchange where the company is listed.

The: respensibility for compliance with the code of corporate goviernanee is that of the Bodrd of Direciors of the

company. Our responsibility is 10 review, t0 the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether

the stutement of compliance reflects the starus of the company’s compliance: with the provisions of the code of

cerporc govermne and report it does not A review is imited primanily to inguiries of the company pérsonnch _—
anil review of various documents prepared by the commpany o comply with the code '

s part of our awdit of financial staements, we are required 1o ohitsin in understanding of the sccounting and inernl

contrl systems sufficient to plan the audit amd develop an elfeoive audit appeoach, We have not carried out any

special review of the imternal control svstem t0 enable us express an apinkon as i whether the Boand's stacement

on internal control covers all controbs and the effectiveness of such intermal contrls -

Based o our review, nothing has come w our atention which cnses us fo beliove thit the seatement of compliande
does not appropriately reflea the company’s compliance, in all marerial respects, with the best pradioes contained
it the Cixbe of corporie povernance.

n p&ﬂ £ o
Faisakzbad: 30 December 2005 AHMAD AND COMPANY)
Chartered accountants



j:; Shakarganj Mills Limited

Auditors' Report To The Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of SHAKARGANJ MILLS LIMITED as at 30 September 2003
and the related profit and loss account, cash fiow statemant and statement of changes in equity, together with
tha notes ferming part thereaof, for the yvear then ended and we state that we have oblained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audil.

It is the responsibility of the company’s managemeant to establish and maintain a system of internal coniral,
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these stalements based on our awdit,

Wi conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are frae of any material misstatement. An sudit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimales made by managemant, as well as, evaluating the overall
presantation of the above said statemeant. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after dua verification, we report that:

a}  inouropinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companies
Chrdinance, 1934;

by inour opinion:

i} the balance sheet and profit and loss account, togather with the naotes therean, have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companles Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of
account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

i) the expenditure ncurmed during the year was for the purpose of the company’s business; and

i) the business conducted, invesiments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
ascordance with the objects of the company,;

c) in gur gpinion and 1o the best of gur information and according io the explanations given Lo us, the
balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow staterment and statement of changes in aguily,
fogather with the notes forming part thereof, confarm with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan, and, give the informaticn required by the Companies Qvdinance, 1584, in tha manner s&
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30
September 2003 and of the profil, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d)  Inour opinion, Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {XVIll of
1980), was deducted by the company and deposited in the Cenftral Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance.

Wi -8
Faisalabad (RIAZ AHMAD AND COMPANY)
Dacember 30, 2003 Chartered Acounlants



Balance Sheet

NOTE {Rupeas in Thousand)
2003 2002
Equity And Liabilities
Share Capital And Reserves
Authorised share capital
50 000 000 ardinary shares of Rupeas 10 each 500,000 500,000
lssued, subscribed and paid up share capital 3 292,860 292,860
Reserves 390,426 118,106
Unappropriated profit 35 115,624
683,221 526,560

Surplus on revaluation of operating

fixed assets 10,566 10.566
Non-current Liabilities =
Redeamable capital 4 427,685 481,685
Leng term loans 5 = 14,657
Liabilities agains! asseis subject o
finance lease B 50,426 5,859
Deferred laxation 15,726 . .

4493 Ba¥ 502,201
Current Liabilities e
Currant portion of long term labilies 7 341473 171875
Sharl term finances 8 780,340 250,536
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 9 208,402 254 474
‘Workers' pariicipation fund 10 B.485 6,578
Pravision for taxation 1 24,226 47,71
Proposed dividend 43,829 43929
Unctaimed dividend 1,347 1,155
1418202 2 776.258
Centingencies And Commitments 1 2 =
2,605,926 1,815,615

The annexed noles form an integral part of these financial statements,

i PP E— R

Chief Executive o
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As At 30 September 2003

Agspts
MNon-current Assels

Tangible fixed assets
Cperating fived assets

Assels subject to finance lease
Capital work-in-progress

Equity investments

Long term deposits

Current Assets

Slores, spare parts and loose lools
Stock-in-rade

Trade debis

Advances, deposits, prepayments and
ather receivahlas

Short term invesimenis

Cash and bank balances

'f-":lllll'l

NGTE

12

14

15
18

17
18

18

20

21

22

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
947,401 779,251
65,825 42.771
158,290 44,627
1,171,516 866,649
125,583 124,574
5,117 1.103
1,302,218 402,326
45,976 28,067
587,479 233,197
|
64,833 99,665
170,742 136,203
419,803 314,006
14,877 12,151
1,303,710 823,289
2,605,926 1815615

bescrbintas

Director
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Profit And Loss Account For The Year

Ended 20 September 2003

NOTE
Sales 231
Cost Of Goods Sold 23.2
Gross Profit
Operating Expenses
Adminisirative and general 24
Salling and distribution 25
Operating Profit
Other Income 26
Financial And Other Charges
Financial charges 27
Other charges 26
Woerkers' participation fund
Profit Before Taxation
Taxation 29

Profit After Taxation
Unappropriated Profit Brought Forward - Adjusted
Profit Available For Appropriation

Appropriations

Froposed dividend Rupees 1.50 (2002: Rupees 1.50) per share
Transferred lo reserve for equily investment

market value equalization

Transferred to general resarve

Unappropriated Profit
Earnings Per Share (Rupees) 32

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

ﬁw-‘h‘-*ﬂ:}'—
Chief Executive

{Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
2,118,843 2,615 804
1,843,613 2,203, Edl:l

. 275,230 41:2 554
63,562 48,620
31,056 30,865
" 94518 79,485

180,612 333,079

117,275 46,634

" 297,887 araria

122,587 173,675

10,833 74,796
8,236 6,569
141,656 255,040
156,231 124673
27,194 14,003

129,040 110,650

115,624 115,603

244,664 226,253

(43,929) ‘ (43,029

(26,000) :5?.{IOD}!

|_g7ero0) | | (airo0)

(244,629) {110,620}
35 115,624
4.41 378
T
Director

el



4" ShaWdrganj MElls Limited

Cash Flow Statement For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash provided by
Operating activities

Depreciation and amartization

Amartization of deferred cost

Contribution to employees' retiremant banalits
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assats
(Profithloss on sale of investments

Dividend from associates

Share in post acquisition profit of associates
Financial chargaes

Cash Flows From Operating Activitios
Before Working Capital Changes

Cash Flows From Working Capital Changes
(Increase)Decrease In Current Assats
Stores, spare paris and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debis
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increasc/{Decreaza) in C nlLis

Short term finances

Credilors, accrued and other liabflities
Warkers' parlicipation fund

Met Cash Flows Fremi{Used In)
Working Capital Changes

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

{Rupess in Thousand)

2003 2002
156,231 124,673
85,828 71.835
- 17,2898
8,964 5,109
{6,653) (7, 733)
{13,310) 32,471
4,189 8,275
[(30,519) {14,676}
122 587 173,675
327,317 410,927
(17,909) B,178|
{354,282 126,250/
34,832 | {45.244)
{61,659) (17.496)
538,804 ‘ {100,065)
{35,151} 19,055
i 65.245
1 QDT_I |_
106,542 {4.0786)
433,859 406,851




{Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002

Financial charges paid (132,508) (202,181)
Income tax pald {15,973) (5.067)
Dividend paid {43,737) {21.508)
Employeas” relirement benefits paid (B22) (7.046)
Met Cash Flows From Operating Activities 240,819 171,052
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

—— -
Proceeds from sale of operafing fixed assets 11,165 9,418
Fined assets acquired (327,449) (112,428)
Lang term deposits (4,014) d.gﬁzl
Investments sold 66,864 37,833
Investments made (62,409) {60,257}
Het Cash Used In Investing Activities (315,843) (120,470)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Redeemable capital 273,994 345,988
Redemption of redesmable capital {141,788) (368,151)
Repayment of long term loans (19,658) (4.310)
Repaymant of finance lease liabilities (34,798) (32,654)
Net Cash Flows Fromi{Used In)
Financing Activities 77,750 (B0,127)
MNet Increasel{Decrease) In Cash And
Cash Equivalents 2,726 {9,545)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning
Of The Year 12,151 21,696
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End
Of The Year 14,877 12,151
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
T S PRy .!i-u‘_,‘fﬂ-p-&-r'-

Chief Executive ~ Director
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Annual Report 2003

Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

1. Status And Nature Of Business

Shakarganj Mills Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on 20 September 1967 as a public imited
company and its shares are quoted on all three Stock Exchanges of Pakistan. The principal activity of
the company is to manufactiure, purchase and sale of sugar, disiiflale and kanewood,

The activilies of the company have been grouped fnto three segments of refated products. The Sugar
division comprises manufaciuring of sugar whereas Distillery and Kanewood divisions are invobved in
Industrial Alcchel and Kanewood manufaciuring activity respeciively. The Sugar division charges carain
percentage of common administrative expendilure fo Distilfery and Kanewood divisions.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.4

2.2

23

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the requirements of the
Companlas Ordinance, 1984, the International Accounting Standards issued by International
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) and interpretations issued by the Standing
Interprefations Commiltae of IASC as adopled In Pakistan. Wherever, the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by the Securilies and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of Companies
Ordinance, 1584 or the requirements of the sald directives take precedence,

Accounting convantion

These accounts have been prepared under the historeal cost convention as meadified by
capilalization of exchange differences. revaluation of certain oparating fixed assets and valuation
af investments as relerred to In Mote 2.5, 2.6 and 2.10.

Stall retirement benefits

Tha company operates pension and gratuity fund schemes for all permanent employees who
are in management cadre. Premium is payable to the funds monthly on the basis of actuarial
computation subject to a maximum of 20 % and 833 % of basic salary of the employees
respactively,

The company also cperates a funded contributory providant fund scheme for all parmanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the company and employess at the
rate of 7 and B percent of basic pay of officers and workers respactivaly.

L
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

24 Taxation

Current
ﬂwbmrulmuh:ﬂmm&mlwm#ﬂumqrﬂ
m#ﬂhmﬂmﬂuﬂlmun&mmlhmdﬁ.ﬁmd
the tumnownr, winchewer is higher,

Deferrad

Betarrad tax s accountsd for by using the Hability matked on all timing differgnces botwean the
cafrying amounts af asaets and lsbilities in the financial staloments and thair tax base. Deferred
tax labililies sre recognized fior al tasbie Wwmporary differences. The company mMCognises
dﬁ-u&mmm:ﬂmmmuhmmltkmm
mmmﬂmwwmmmmﬁwmm
be uiiized. Defarrad tax s calouiated ot The tax raies that ane expecied 10 apply 1o T penicd
when tha asse! is moalized or the kalulty is selfied.

25 Foreign currencies

Assels and Habillies in forsign currencies ate ranslated al the rates of axchange pravailng at
tealznce sheet date of ot the contracted rates while forsign currency ransactions ane recorded

- at the rates of exchange prevailing st the iransaction date or ot tha coniracied rates. Exchangs
m-ﬂm-tmnimmmmummzﬂ
2 26 Tangible fixed assets and depreciati-

Operating fed assots are siated al o and appreciaied value lass aocumuiated depreciation
Freehald land is staled at costappreciated valie and caplial work-in-progress at cost.

m#w@wnﬂmwﬂudmm.wmﬂm:ﬁaﬁm
formign currency loan, Sppreciated valie and direct sttributable cost of bringing the assels to
workang coniton Bumﬂqmwﬁﬁqhummmmmhﬂ
of corepleton 5 390 captaied o part of histonce cost

Oepracintion oo operaimg fixed assets is charged 1o noome on reducing taiance method 0
> wrile olf the costapprocistsd vatun including related exchange differences over thar expeciad

useful m.Funym':wmhdmmmmum.muamwmmmmm
assels deloted during the year,

Maintenance and normal repairs are chargesd to income as and when incurred. Majpor ranawals
Fr Enprovements e copisiined. Gain or ioas on disposat of operating loord assets is charged
o Curmenl yBsrs MKome
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

27

2.8

2.9

2.10

Aszets subject to finance lease

These are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease paymants under the leage
agregmants and the fair vaiue of assets acquired on lease. Aggregate amount of obligations
relating to assets subject lo finance lease are accounted for at net present value of liabilities.
Assels 5o acquired are amoriized over thair expected usaful life. Amortizalion of lease assels is
charged to current year's income.

Deferred cost

The expenses from where the benefits are expected to accrue for more than one year are

deferrad and amorized over the period of five years or the period in which he economic benefils

arg consumed by the company, whichever ks shorier,

Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term liabiliies are capitalized uplo the date of

commissioning of respective fixed assels acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term liabilities,

All other interest, mark-up and other charges ara charged to income.

Equity Invesiments

2101 Associated Undertakings
Investments in associaled undertakings are stated using equity method.

2102 Other Investments
Imvestmants are initially recognised on frade-date at cost, compriging of consideration
paid and cost of transaction. For isted securiies, closing quotations of stock exchanges
on last working day of the accounting year are considered for determining fair value,
while for unquoted securities, fair value I3 determined considering break-up value of the
securities. 15 classification is made on the basis of intended purpose for holding such
investments. These are measured at the balance sheel date on the following basis:
Held to Maturity

These are stated at amortized cost less impairment loss, if any, recogmised o reflect
irrecoverable amounts. Impairment losses are charged o profit and loss account,

Held for Trading

These are recognised at fair value and changes in carrying values are included in profit
and loss accounl.

A
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MNotes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

an

212

213

214

Axaitable for Sale

These are stated 3! law value and changes in campng values are recognised n egqudy
wrild evwirstment 5 50l o determinge] 1o be impasned & winch e T curmuiaive Gaen
or loss previously recognised in equity is included in profit and loss account for the year.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Slores, spane parts and loose tools gre valled at cost caltulated on moving average basis less
provisoon for cbsolescence. ems in rans:it ane siaied 5t invoice values plus offber charges pasd
fherson 10 the Daance sheet dade

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-rade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except molasses (By-
product) that is valusd ot net realizeble value, Cost in refation (o worksin-process and finished
goads consisis of average material cost, direct iabowr and lactory overheads. Nel realizable
ke Sigrifies the prenvading market pces o the ordnany cowrss of Dusingds ess seling enpensas
inGdantal o sakes,

Reiated party transactions

All ransactions and contracts with relaied parties are carried ouwl i arm's length prices determined
i acoordEnce with comparable unconirobed price mathod.

Trado dobts

Trade dubis ongnated by the company are recognised and camed 3l Ongenal voce Smouni
253 9n alivwance for any uncoSecible amounts. Known bad debts are weillen of and prossaon
= ey BoEns: debls conscored doubiiud when coecion of T full armount & O inger prodabip

Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligniion as
a resull of past evenis and it s probable thal an oulflow of resources embodying economic
benafils will be required lo saltle the obiigation and a reliable estimale of the obligation can be
made. However, provisions are reviewed at sach baiance sheet date and adfusted o refiec
curren! bist stimate.
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

2.16

217

218

218

2.20

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet dale 1o
determing whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assols
recaverabie amount is estimated and impairment losses ane recognized in the profit and loss
atcount,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales is recognized on delivery of goods o customars. Dividend from associated
underakings is recognized as reduction in cosl of invesimants as prescribed by International
Accounting Standard 28 and on other investments when right 1o receive the dividend is
established. Gainfloss on Investments in associated undertakings is accounted for io recognize
the post acquisition changes in the share of net assets of the investee and in case of ather
investmants on receipt basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised at cost thal is the fair value of the consideration
given or received at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the: instrument by following trade date accounting,

A financial asset or part thereof is de-recognised when the Company loses conirol of (he
contractual right thal comprizes the financial asset or part thereof. Such contral is deemead to be
lpat if the Company realizes the rights to the benefits specified in the confracts, the rights expira
ar thie Cormpany sumenders those rights_ A financial liability er part thereof is remaved from the
balance sheet when It is extinguished i.e, when the ebligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement and de-recognition is charged o income,

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial
slatements when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off and the company intends either to
settle on 2 net basis, or to realize the assets and to setlle the liabillties simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalants of tha Company consist of cash in hand and balances with banks
{Mote 22),

b



d;:",p Shakarganj Mills Limited

Motes Te The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

3. Issued, Subscribed And Pakd Up Share Capital

13 198 995 (2002: 13 198 995) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid up in cash

750 000 (2002: 750 000} ardinary shares of Rupees 10
each issued to Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment
Carpaoration Limited against their right of option o
convert 20 percent of their loan into fully paid up shares

15 337 034 {2002: 15 337 034) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares

202,860

{Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
131,990 131,930
7,500 7.500
153,370 183,370
292,860

3.1 6529 503 (2002: 11 575 618) shares of the company are held by associated undertakings

4. Redeemable Capital-non-participating Secured

Long term finances ulllized under mark-up arrangements are as undar:

Term finance cerificates MNo,1 (Note 4.1 and 4.2)
Term finance certificates No 2 (Nate 4.1 and 4.3)
Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investmeant
Corporathon Limibed (Note 4.4)

Banking companies (Note 4.5)
International Housing Finance Limited (Mote 4.6)

Less: Current partion (Note ¥)

427,685

166,600
199,920

17,886

360,444
10,383

755,233

327,548

248,900
200,000

31,960

141,167

G23.027

141,342

481,685

41 Both issues of Term Finance Certificates are secured against first pari passu charge an all
present and future fixed assels of the company and pledge of marketable securiies to the fune
of Rupees 40 million. The TFCs issued o general and institutional investors are in set of eight
TFCs each having face value of Rupeess 5,000, Rupees 25,000, Rupees 50,000, Rupees 100,000

ard Rupees 1,000,000.
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

These are listed on Lahore Stock Exchange and were issued to repay the short-tanm high rate
borrowing. These carry fioating profitfmark-up based on Stale Bank of Pakistan discount rale
plus two percent with a floor of 15 percent and ceiling of 18.75 percent, The profittmark-up and
principal will be repayable In eight semi annual instalments.

These are listed on Lahore Stock Exchange and were issued to repay the short-term high rale
borrawing. These carry floating profitmark-up based on State Bank of Pakistan discount rate
plus two percent with a floor of 12,25 percent and ceifing of 15 percent, The profitmark-up and
principal will be repayable in eight semi annueal instalments.

Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment Corporation Linvted has purchased machinery valuing
Rupeas 323.331 million from the company which was deemed 1o have been rescld to the company
at marked up price of Rupees 507 871 millicn which includes rebate of Rupees 86.091 million
on fimely payments. These are secured against:

{a) firstlegal morigage on company’s present and fulure immovable properfies wherever situated
inciuding all bulldings, plant and machinery and fixtures;

(b} first charge ranking pan passu with the existing charges by way of hypothecation in respect
of all the machinery of the company, present and fulure;

i) first fioating charge ranking pari passu with the existing charge an all other assets of the
company, bofh present and fulure, subject to the hypothecation or charge in favour af
company's bankers as referred to in Naote &; and

(d) demand promissory nota.

These are repayable in 21 to 36 quarierly installments and carry mark-up at the rate of T to
13.50 percent per annum.

Finances from banking companies are repayable in 12 quariery, 10 semi annual and one
lurmpsum instalments, Thesa carmy mark-up at the rate of 4.7 1 parcent (o 7.5 percent per annum.
These facilities are secured against first charge on fixed assels ranking pari passu with ather
creditors and pledge of finished goods.

Martgage financing facility was obtamed from International Housing Finance Limited for purchase
of building. It carries mark-up with a fioor of 7.5 percent and a cedling of 11,5 percent per annum.
Repayment will be made in 66 monthly instaiments staring from 25 February 2004 after a grace
period of 6 manths,
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
Long Term Loans
Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment
Corporation Limited
Loan Mao:
IBRD-2019 - 1,723
ADB-966 - 17.835
- 19,658
Less: Current portion {Note 7) - 5,01
- 14,657

51 Long tean kans from Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment Corporation Limited have been
regaid during the year.

Liabilities Against Assets Subject
to Finance Lease

Future renals and perieds during which they fall due are as under:

20 Seplember 2003 - 2843
30 Seplember 2004 20,817 6,985
30 Septamber 2005 20,425 -
30 September 2006 16,673 -
30 Septamber 2007 15,238 .
30 Seplember 2008 6,800
Baiarcs reniais as ol 30 September 79,762 35,483
Less: Financial charges 154N 4,082
Fresent valug of minimum lease payments 64,351 31,29
Less: Current pertion (Mote 7) 13,925 25532
50,426 5,859

6.1 The value of minimum lease rental payments has been discounied at an implicit inlerest rate
ranging from 11.50 to 15.40 percent. The balance rentals are payabie in monthly/gquarterty
instaliments and in cage of defaull in any payment, an additional charge at the rate of 2 parcent
shall be paid. Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are bom by the lessee. Lesses shall have no
right fo erminate lease agreements and if lease agreaments are lerminated, the lessee shall
pay enfire amount of rentals for unexpired period of lease agreements. Lease agreements are
renewable at the oplion of lessor on such terms ag may be agreed upon. Liabilities are secured
against deposit of Rupees 4.055 million (2002: Rupees 0.643 million) included in lorg term
deposils (MNote 16).
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MNotes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

6.2  Minimum leasa paymeants and their present values are regrouped as under;

{Rupees in Thousand

:;r_huz | 2002
Within | More than one | Within | More than one
one year year but less ane year | year but less
| than five years than five years
Total of minimum lease payments 20,617 59,145 28,498 6.085
Less: Financial charges 6,692 8119 2,966 1,126
Present Value of minimum
lease paymenis '!3.92§ 50,426 2&532_ 5859
(Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
7. Current Portion Of Long Term Liabilities
Redeemable capital 327,548 141,342
Long term loans - 5,001
Liabilittas against assels subject to finance lease 13,925 255632
341,473 171,875
a. Short Term Finances —— —
Secured:
From banking companies
Cash finance (Mote 8.1} 365,886 216,128
Expor refinance (Note B.2) 362,250 34,399
Running finance (Mate 8.3) 16,868 -
Other (Note 8.4) 23123
768,127 250,528
Unsecured-Unprasented cheques 21,213 A
789,340 250,536

8.1 These are secured against pledge of finished geods. Mark-up is chargeable at the rate of 2.75
percent to 9.5 percent per annum, These form part of aggregate credit facility of Rupeas 879 650

million (2002; Rupees 322.423 milllan).

§
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

10.

8.2 These are secured against lien on expor coniracts and ranking charge for dellar finance faclity
on the current assels of the company. It carries mark-up for dollar finance facility from LIBOR
plus 1.5 percant to LIBOR plus 2 percent and export refinance facility from 3 percent to 4
parcent per annum. These form part of aggregate credit facility of Rupees 389 million (2002

Rupeas 50 million).

8.3 Running finance facility is secured against hypothecation of stores and spares, It carries mark-

up from 7.5 percent to 12 percent per annum,

B.4 Thessa are oblained for sugarcane growers and are secured against the guarantee of the company.
These carry mark-up from 9 percent to 12 perceni per annum. These form part of aggregate

credit facility of Rupees 45 million (2002: Rupeas Nif).

{Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
Creditors, Accrued And Other Liabilities
Creditors 69,871 45,108
Advance from cusiomers 27,704 53,632
Securilies from contractors = Intarest free, repayable
on completion of coniracts 1,270 1,257
Income tax deducted al source 553 315
Mark-up accrued on redeemabbe capltal = Secunad 15,085 23,747
Interest accrued on long term loans - Secured 1,163 814
Mark-up accrued on short term finances - S0 ured 6,208 7.806
Sales tax payable 33,552 37173
Due to pension fund 244 -
Due to associated undertakings 755 29,577
Ciher accrued liabilibes 52 907 54,044
209,402 254,474
Workers' Participation Fund
Balance as at 01 October 6,578 1,332
Allocation for the year 8,236 6,565
Imterest accrued 249 136
15,063 5037
Less: Payments made during the year 6,578 1,459
B.485 6,578

101 Interest is paid at the prescribed rate under the Act an the funds ubilized by the company till the

date of allocation 1o workers.
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003 *

" Contingencies And Commitments
Cantingencies
Thare was no contingent liability/asset al the year end (2002: Rupees Nil).

Campany's share of contingencies of associated underiakings is Rupees 36.055 million (2002: Rupees
12,335 milllon)

Commitments ]

antracts for capi‘al expenditune are Rupees 386.616 million (2002: Rupees 9.823 million). Letbors of
reeelil other than copital expendilure are Rupees 0.615 million {2002 Rupees Nil).

Coinpany’s share of commitments of associated undertakings is Rupees 4.971 million (2002 Rupeas
2,763 milbpn}

Uperating Fized Assets

{Rupts in Thosmand
Cest/Re-ansevned Valaw Bepiaclidalisa Brimih. -
Valus clabicen
Adalél | Admtiesdd | As39 | As et 91| Adpstments{Chargs | Asat30 | Axsids | e i
BEHIFTION Oenober | (Deltons) | Septemtess | Cctober forthe (September | Soctembei | %
] a1 ] yerr | 2003 003
i Lt et 1 M 43738 L . ; ] L]
(r 3114
T 1 15201 wETET  TIaw HSAT  TRIST GRS TH
1 ] ey bR (e LY 1653 S LT (114 [ ] BELTIS  TeRSEd ]
(=]
Brad BQRAT T 19308 a1 25047 15588 [E]] 3,783 L1k 88T4 th
i
e, AT B 1 oy ECETE] a7 15.0EE 5] . 1,08 LLECE] HE ] ]
iy vl Bl 11788 2043 LR F [ 5] (1 1] [5Y 5] 3,558 -]
(158
LTE ] 1511 5 R FICTIE YT R T R
AER
TS [} - an ¥ 2 o L1 10
wy Sewsh T A0S L] T4 ATET amr [ &L0 1480 m
t1 LA EAA0  LSMRN RERETS [LIBE TATMT 1800340 MTASM -
iSem)
= 1,558 57 140,58 1,701,508 BET M {7 Gy [ F ) ﬂl.l;i T?;;
[B AT}
121 The company has given 10,38 acres land valuing Rupees 0.260 million for 20 years lease o
Crescent Ujala Limited on annual rent of Rupees 3,968 par acre. Lease rant will ba increased
by 15 percent afier every three years and lease s extendible for another term of 20 years with
mubua! cansanl of both partias.
=
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MNotes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

12.2

123

124

Land, buildings and plant and machinery were revalued by an indepandont value at 30
September 1979 and stated in note 12 at appreciated value. Had thams bosn no revaduation
that dale, the value of these oparaling fixed assets would have been cwer by Rupess 10,568

million (2002; Rupees 10,566 million),

The book value of freehold land, buildings on freehold land-and piont ana machino,

basis is Rupees 59.875 million, Rupees 6§6.423 million and Rupeses i

(2002: Rupeas 19.349 milion, Rupees 37.123 million and Rupees 696520 milluo
{Rugpees i Thious
2007

Depraciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of goods sold

Sugar (Mole 23.2) Sl 638

Digtillate {Mole 23.2) 10,4506

Fanewcod {Mota 23.2) 847

Administrative and general expenses-

Sugar {Mote 24.1) B.705

8,747

ana)

2002
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003 o

12.5 Disposal Of Operating Fixed Assets

{Rupees In Thwli'l-_l;!
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year

b Ended 30 September 2003
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

13. Assets Subject To Finance Lease

{Rupoes In Thousand)

& o & 1 Lo T i, o dyuetad ata
Dmresiztim AsALE|  Addionsl  AsALS  AsALE  Adpebrents Chage For A ALJD  ASMI B Rats
Ot (Delatlen]  Seplember  Oclober The Yair  Spplemibsr  Seplembar L
Tz a3 20613 083 2003 |
Vst et rrascharsry a3a80 000 (210 19,5000 FETL - Y. 4,500 04500 1S
A
Welulen (] I s 14,13 L] (=1 FLCL] EE ] L EEL] =
s
ougmants Ak [TErT F 1588 [aX-o a = ¢ a0
I 83,535 EPTSa 483 20,754 e eaTy o B3 L]
LT QR0
oz 014 8,48 a1,780 480 e asM 0 A2,
(S10Ms

131 Delations rapresent the leased assals purchased at the expiry of lease term and fransfermad to
operating fixed assets.

13.2 Amortization charge of leasehold assets for the year has been allocated as follows:

{Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
Cost of goods sold -
Sugar (Mot 23.2) 2,825 2.785
Distiltate (Note 23.2) 1,575 -
Administrative and general expenses-
Sugar (Note 24.1) 2,581 2,753
7.081 5,544
14. Capltal Work-in-progress
Buildings 2,725 -
Plant and machinery 77620 42,610
Advance against supply of machinary Tr.410 2,017
Furniture 535 -
158,290 44,627

o
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
F Ended 30 September 2003

{Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
15. Equity Investments

Quoted
Associated undertakings;

MashregBank Pakistan Limited
= 5 010 705 (2002; 2 867 380) ordinary shares of

Rupees 10 each fully paid 51,463 58,345
- Eguity held 5.73%

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

T48 028 (2002: 912 525) ordinary shares of

Rupees 10 each fully paid 43,280 39,955
Equity heid 3.72%

Crescent Sugar Mills and Distillery Limited
955 242 (2002: 955 B48) oedinary shares of

- Rupees 10 each fully paid 22,837 18,369
»? Equity held 5.03%
» Crescent Boards Limited
81 960 (2002: 91 960) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 sach fully paid 1,645 1,687

Equity hetd 0.78%

Crescent Jute Products Limited

536 817 (2002 536 817) ordinary shares of

Rupees 10 each fully paid - =
Equity heid 3.56%

Jubilee Spinning and Weaving Mills Limited
15 584 (2002: 15 584) ardinary shares of

- Fupees 10 each fully paid =
Equity held 0.22%

The Crescent Textile Mills Limited

17 561 (2002: 17 561) ordinary shares of

Rupees 10 each fully paid BES 726
Equity held 0.04%
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

1t

18.

14.

Stores, Spare Parts And Loose Tools
Slores

Spare pars
Loose toods

Less: Pravision for obsolescance

Stock-in-trade
Work-in-process
Finished goods:
Sugar

Molasses

Distilfate
Hanewood

Trade Debts
Considered good:

Unsecunad
Sevurad

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
31,579 18,152
15,124 10,858

76 BaT
47.476 20,567
1,500 1500
45,976 28,067
3,180 5401
501,257 | 192,254
19,856 ;
55,760 21,426
7,426 | 14,026
584,209 227,706
587,479 233,197
64,833 65,908
= 33,756
64,833 99,665




Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

20.  Advances, Deposits, Propayments

And Other Receivables

Loans and advances ~Considered good:

Employees-Interest free

Suppliers and contraciors

Income lax

Pension and gratuity fund

Sugarcane growers (Note 20.1)

Due from associaled underakings (Mote 20.2)

Considered doubtful:

Sugarcane growars
Less: Provision for doubiful

Deposits:

Margin against bank guarantees
Secufily deposit against leazehold assals {Mate 6.1}

Lelers of credil

Short term prepayments
Sales tax

Accrued interest

Sundry recetvables

(Rupees in Thousand)

-

2003 2002
162 260
78,325 7.388
15.973 34,950
538 8.436
20,195 28,448
2143 S
117,336 79,493
2,001 2,001 |
2,001 2,001
117,336 79,403
1,769 918/

= 421 U[

1769 5,128
2,099 4,805
2,863 15,669
783 :

. 28
45,892 25,860
170,742 136,203

20.1 Mark-up is charged on loans to sugarcane growers al the rate of 9 to 12 percent per annum,

20.2 Due from associated undertakings are delalled betow:
Crescent Busingss Management (Private) Limited

Crescent Sugar Mills and Distillery Limited

1,782
361

2143

iy

%Y
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 20 September 2003

21.

Short Term Investmaonts

CQucted

The Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited
40 120 (2002: 40 129) ordirary shares of Rupees 5
each fully paid

Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment
Corporation Limited

6 137 875 (2002: 6 923 B90) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid

Trust Investment Bank Limited
9 695 939 (2002: 9 695 939) ordinary shares af
Rupees 10 each fully paid

Safteway Mutual Fund Limited
5 327 100 (2002: 4 234 200} ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid

First Standard Investment Bank Limited
444 358 ordinary shares (2002: 109 786
certificates of First Crescent Modaraba)

of Rupees 10 sach fully paid (Note 21.1)

Crescent Knitwear Limited
00 000 (2002: 700 000) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 gach fully paid

Husein Sugar Mills Limited
631 (2002: 631) ardinary bonus shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid

AR Pak. International Investment Limited
10 000 (2002: 10 000) ordinary shares af
Rupees 10 each fully paid

Pakistan International Airlines Corporation
51 (2002: 51) ordinary bonus shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid

Pakistan Qil Fields Limited
1350 (2002: 1 350) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003

150,308

105,859

51,412

1,287

7122

2002

168,479

105,859

38,483

965

7.122
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

(Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
Prudential Discount and Guarantee House Limited
46 000 (2002: 131 000) ardinary shares of
Rupesas 10 aach fully paid 646 1,033

Pakistan Telecommunication Corporation Limited
Mil {2002: 10 Q00) ordinary shares of Rupeaes 10 each fully paid - 295

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
25 000 (2002; 25 000) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid 1,620 1,620

Muslim Commercial Bank Limited
3 565 (2002: 3 565) ordinary bonus shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid =

Shaheen Cotton Mills Limited
£35 000 (2002: 535 000) crdinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid 6,955 5,955

Crescent Spinning Mills Limited
341 300 (2002: 341 300} ordinary shares of
Rupeas 10 each fully paid 3,413 3413

Atlas Lease Limited
Mil (2002: 50 540) ordinary shares of Rupaas 10 each fully pakd - 132

Paramount Leasing Limited
22 000 (2002; Nil) ordinary shares of
Rupess 10 each fully paid 113 =

Pacific Leasing Company Limited
2 000 {2002; Nil) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid 9 =

PICIC Cemmercial Bank Limited
910 500 (2002: Nilj ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid 32,644 -

Crescent Leasing Corporation Limited
4 319 352 (2002; 3 550 291) ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each fully paid 73,361 o017



#fﬁrlllkllrﬂﬂﬂj Mills Limited

Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 20 September 2003

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
Unguoted- Associated Undertaking

Crescent Group Services (Private) Limited

220 000 (2002; 220 000) ordinary shares of

Rupees 10 each fully paid 2,200 2.200
Equity hetd 18.98 percent. Break-up value as por last

audited accounts was Rupees zaera per share,

Other - Crescent Ujala Limited
330 000 (2002: Mil) ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid 3,300
Break-up valug as par last sudited accounts was Rs, 10,18 per share

441,020 405,844

Less: Fair value adjiustiment under 1AS 39 29,217 92838
418,803 314,008

211 305 358 fully paid ordinary shares of First Standard Investment Bank Limited (FSIBL) have
been recaived against 101 786 certificales of First Crescent Modaraba (FCHA) after merger of
First Crescent Modaraba into First Standard Investment Bank Limited, The shares were received
at a swap ratio of 3 shares of FSIBL against 1 share of FGM

21.2 Marketbreakup value of short term nvestmenls as on 30 September 2003 was Rupees 419,803
miflion (2002: Rupees 272.646 million),

21.3 Following investments having face value of Rupees 40301 milion (2002 Rupees 56,944 millkon)
are deposited as security with banks, financial instiutions and investmeant COMpanies:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
Against finances from investmant banks 40,000 56,643
Agains! central excise duly on loan i m

40,301 56.944
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003 o~

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
22, Cash And Bank Balances
Cash in hand 1,084 943
Cash with banks on:
Current accounis 13,435 9,585
Deposit accounts - T26
Dividend account = 14
Foreign currency account 358 BT3
13,793 11,208
14,877 12,151
23.  Operating Results
] DBistillary Unit Kanewoes Unit Takal
2003 003 2002 2003 o0z a003 200
Saiea {hato 23.1) 1895985 1503574 XITEB 2S00 20755 NTMEE TUBEAY 2015804 k"
Coat of goods sold | Mole 232) 1,745,578 265008 21358 1B4S07 OIS 13H0 1A 22030
-
150,407 338565 124312 oS =0 3,206 ITEII 412,564
Adrenisirative nnd ganaerl (Mol 24) 53,321 24,150 $ES1 4,183 ] f]
Seiling nnd tribuson (Mots 25) 5,871 585 || 25170 14,935 ] i a1.n5u
89,182 5003 34771 20,087 TR DL E1E
P28 28EL2E 23,551 41,006 {154} 2eay 180612 33009
231 Sales
Locat ZOS4E43  ZTETI32 TOZGE  1AAMS 20755 ITME 45868 201TEX)
Expen - 260084 102355 . - JH004 102385
Infpr-pegmand
Hieam 15,034 28,008 c . o . . . =
Baggase 1,554 A2 - ¢ = . ] -
Mol 14988 1089558 - - - - -

2190430 2807543 339,362  ZIST00 20785 1T48 2414760 2020.17H

Losa: Commasion i sallng agonts ’ || “ | 332
Salod T 291,110 mw - - 93,50 359-39-!

204,435 A0 37 1452 - - 85,917 404 374

1885085 500874  3ATERY 235700 20788 17146 2,118,843  ZB15804

W
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
5y Ended 30 September 2003

23.2 Cost Of Goods Sold

iR i1 Thesisan:
%p_- Uit Kanawosd Ura ’EE"‘%&'" A
] T - S| R

Purchades
Inlnf-sagmant - . 'Iusf!‘-l 13T 54
Raws Matnrial Cost 1.I'MM”!J|!3.-IH I || : Ns | a:-w | I1J:m1| |1 771,884 |
3 1,7T004 1, TRD 460 150 1818487 1771584
Salirgd, wogos and other Berdity g 55,150 2772 2143 167 1.0 E1,802 55,534
¥ Swniee, spare parts and loose beols 10T B118 LA ] 1,503 1,815 2543 a7 460 12,571
Dryoe and chemicals 1744 13,880 10,047 7054 = . 761 21046
Praciing mmabaral 22764 22038 - - . . 2,784 2.0m
Ful and Pevs AT 2557 M08 X382 4,074 8782 60,006 34,501
Fiepair and maisterance £59,343 E2ASY . . - . [ R ] 52,453
Iruranga P EATS 196 109 ] B 3,038 Z.568
Vishickeed” cparading & malnisnance Tedd 2077 - - - . 2,684 2077
Thiveilinig and tormeayance 344 6] s - - . 31 355
Pristing and siatioreny 448 A . - - . FTe] 435
Ruil, fotiry and et 148 L] . - - . 145 181
Dﬂwmm B,343 854 1,832 ] a1 sar AT 1087
1@ i 22977 AT = - - - 22877 10,474
'P}, Bus trainkesy and develpment 4,387 1,408 58 - - - 4525 1450
Rapriciatoniamonaaton 61,564 57,146 1200 6,137 847 24 TAE4T T
TNTIAZ6 L0008 BATARE B354 15,654 STa00  TA0T80% 2076san
! ‘Worlk i procoss imaaniony:
As 01 Octebar 5.?1:’1" 1,5ia—r - . 5,401 156
Asa 30 Soplomber [ LR I 5481 l « I | . | l 3,180 I 5404
231 (4 . . 231 13845
EATAANT Z005083 24TB9F ABT004 nm T 2,200,208 2073044
Coad of goods producoed
Firistwd goods inventony:

Aaal 01 Oeschar 10028 | | 2200 || 2428 14,020
s a8 30 Soplembes 31,112 152,284 55780 :1_43 7425 14,02\5 w.:n 221' m
{164

IS0ANE  (34.334) GE00 (13,2630 | 356,593 ) 151

1, TAEETE 2005008 393,558 T4 B0T  BOIE 12840 1243693 230240

23.3 Inter-segment SalesiPurchases
Inter-segment salesipurchases have been eliminated from total figures,
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
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24.  Administrative And General Expanses

Salaries, wages and other banefils
Directors” mesting fee

Traveding and conveyance

Printing and stafionery

Telephone, postage and telegrams
Wehicles' running

Legal and professional

Auditors' remuneration:

Annual audil fee

Carporate govenance compliance review fee

Hall yearfy reviaw lea
Oul of pocket expenses

Repair and maintanance
Entertainmart

Subscription

Rent, rates and taxes

Publicity

Registered office expenses
Miscellanecus
Depreciation’amariization (Note 24.1)

24.1 Depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation (Mote 12.4)
Amartization (Mote 13.2)

25.  Selling And Distribution Expenses

Fresght and fonwarding
Handling and distribution
Loading and unipading
Sales promolion expenses
Insurance

{Rupees In Thousand)

2003 2002

28,305 24,245
115 35
2,865 2,081
246 &70
1,648 1,485
2,575 2,662
5,346 1,385

245 245]

30 .|

50 - |

19 15

344 260
3,061 1917
164 157
2,374 2168
508 T
739 287
726 844
2,540 1.785
11.286 7.628
63,562 48620
8,705 4,869
2,581 2,759
11,286 T E28
24,058 24,381
2,694 2,665
3,275 2,035
915 -
114 1,784
31,056 30,865
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
d 0
£ Ended 30 September 2003
{Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
' 26.  Other Income
Commission on fertilizer 118 2
. Gain on dispogsal of operating fixed assets 6,653 T.733
Dividend income 13.231 10,113
Raturn on bank deposils 675 888
" Prafit on sale of invesiments 46,903 -
Rental income 122 726
p Electricily income 10,261 9,303
Share in post acquisition profit of associates 30,519 14,676
Miscallaneous 8,793 2974
"T.275 46,634
27. Financial Charges
Mark-uplinterest on:
-._ b Redeemable capital 6B,819 58,642
. Sharl term finances 37,934 100,162
Long lerm loans 213 3418
i -&- Workers” participation fund 249 136
| Finance charges on lease liabiliies 6,711 6,057
] Lease agreements foe 570 234
Bank charges and commission 6,173 5.025
122,587 173,675
28, Other Charges
Loss on investmenis - 46,856
; Excise duly on loans = 17,928
& 4 Donations (Nole 28.1) 8,784 2,780
Term finance expenses 2,049 333
Amartization of deferrad cost (TFCs) - 3.800
10,833 74,796
. 281 There was no interest of any director or his spouse in the donees,
™
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003 R

(Rupees in Thousand)

2003 2002
29. Taxation
Tax charged for the year
Current (Note 29.1) 11,465 14,023
Deferred (Note 29.2) 15,726 -
2719 14,023

291 This represents provision for the year against minimum tax on turnover under section 113 and
tax on dividend income under section 5 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. After considering
the available tax losses, no provision for current taxation except minimum tax is required. Tax
losses available to be camed forward are Rupees 280,130 million as at 30 September 2003
(2002: Rupees 403,526 milkon).

292 Provision for deferred taxation has been determined according to the tax effect of timing differ-
ence on account of tax depreciation allowance adjusted to the extent of carry forward tax losses,

29.3 While framing assessment orders for the years 1998-1999, 19992000 and 2000-2001, the
Income Tax Officer disallowed certain expenses on various grounds, which have reduced the
tax losses available for carry forward by Rupees 248.016 million. The company baing aggrieved
has filed appeals with the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which are still pending.
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
a Ended 30 September 2003
30. Chief Executive And Executives' Remuneration
. The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for the year for remuneration, allowances including all
banefils to chief executive and executives of the company are as follows:
. (Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
Description Chief Exgcutives Chiaf Executives
= Executive Executive
. Managerial remuneration . 20,111 - 18,034
Housing - 5,706 - 4,958
Contribution to:
Provident fund - 1427 - 1,036
Pension fund - 3,158 - 2167
Gratuity fund . 1,315 - 1,058
P gh
-~ Other benefits:
LHility allowance - 2.0m - 1,803
“ L Reimbursable expenses - 563 - 1,081
- 35,079 - 30,832
Number of persons 1 7 1 [:1:3
301 Three executives (2002; Three executives) have been provided free maintained vehicles by the
company.
o 30.2 Aggregate amount charged in the accounts for fee to six directors in respect of three meatings

was Rupees 115,000 (2002: Rupeeas 35,000 for three meetings).
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31. Transactions With Associated Undertakings/Related Parties

Maximum aggregate amount due from associaled underakings at the and of any month during the
vear was Rupees 2,143 million (2002 Rupees 2,163 million).

The company purchased from associated undenakings materials, goods and sarvices in the aggregate

sum of Rupees 10.685 milion (2002: Rupees 11.822 million). Furchases of materials, goods and
senices ane made at prevailing market prices. Thera is no transaction/dealing with any other related

party.
32. Earning Per Share-basic And Diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic eaming per share, which is based on:

2003 2002
Profit attribulable to ordinary
Sharaholders {Ruptes in Thousand) 129,040 0,650
Mumber of ordinary sharas 289 286 029 29 286 029
Eaming per share (Rupeaas) 4.41 3.78 )
33.  Financial Instruments And Related Disclosures
33.1 Financial assets and liabilities
168 4 -
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003
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33.2 Financial instruments and risk management policies

The company issues financial instruments mainly fo finance its operations. In addiion, financial
instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables arise directly from the comgpany's operation,

The company finances its operations primarily by a mixture of issued share capital, retained

profits, kang term and shor term loans and liabilities. The company bormows funds in local currency

usually al fixed rate of inlerestmark-up.

Overall risks arsing from the company’s financial instrumenis are limited.

{a) Interest rate risk
Since the company bomows funds usually al fixed Interest rates, therefare, the risk occurmance
is minimal. However in case of lerm finance cerlificates the company has given profit rate in
the range of 12.25 percent to 18,75 percent per annum.

(b} Foreign exchange risk managemant

Foraign currency risk on financial instruments, recelvables or payables in foreign CUTTENGY
is also not material.
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Motes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

(c) Credit risk

The company deals mostly with regular and permanent customers who pay the instrumants
on due dates. The company considers the credit risk as minimal.

{d) Fair value of financial assets and liabllities

Tha carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflecied in the financial statements
approximate their fair values except for equity investmeants in associated companies which
have been accounted for using equily method.

34, Employees' Retirement Benefits
{Rupees in Thousand)

Pension Funds Gratuity Funds
2003 2002 2003 2002
Current services cosl 5,778 2,385 1,125 1.081
Refurn cost 5831 5410 1,680 1,603
Expected return on plan assels {6,412) (5,158) (1,740) (1.570)
Vested past service cost 819 B19 - -
Cost due 1o change in banefits - - 318 318
6,016 3,456 1,383 1,522
Movement In Assels/|Liability)
Assets/(iability) as on 01 Oclober 2002 4,485 2,551 693 443
Amount charged to profit and loss account (6,016) (3,458) 1,383 1,522
Total contributions made during the year 6,059 5,390 (1,508) (1.272)
Assets{labiity) as on 30 September 2003 4,528 4,485 568 693
These are made-up as under:
Present value of defined benefits cbligation 78,928 53,010 18,368 15.2M1
Fair value of plan assels (67,326) (53.431) (19,299) (14,505)
Vested pasl services cost to be recognized
in later periods (5,7386) {6.555) (291) (a54)
Unrecegnized actuarial lossesf{gains) {11,394) 2,491 1,780 B81
(4,528) [4.485) 568 Ba3

Employees retirement benefits charged in the profit and loss account ang aggregately amounting to
Rupees 8.964 milllon (2002: Rupaes 5109 million).

Number of employess al tha year and 2003: 695 {2002: §36)

fa
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
i Ended 30 September 2003

.
35.  Plant Capacity And Actual Froduction
2003 2002
Sugar:
Capacity in 160 days M. Ton 108 800 108 BOO
Per day capacity M, Ton 680 630
ap Actual production M. Ton 127 060 128 000
Percentage of production % 116.78 11765
2 Distillery:
Capacity Litres per day BO 000 B0 000
On the basis of 270 days wiarking Litres 21 600 000 16 200 000
Actual production Litres 26 233 000 15 800 156
Percentage of production & 121.45 87.53
Particle Board;
J i
- Capacity Cubic meter per day 30 an
: On the basis of 200 days working Cubic meter G000 G000
Actual production Cubic metar 1 667.755 5669.960
Percentage of production % 27.80 84.50

351 Reasons for low production - particle board

The low production of particle board was due to shartage of baggase and lower demand in the

market.
(Rupees in Thousand)
2003 2002
= 36.  Segment Assets And Other Information
Sugar 2,545,090 1.773.242
Distillery 30,147 20,998
Kanewood 30,689 21,375

2,605,926 1,815,615

361 Molasses and baggase {By-Products of Sugar) are issued to distillery and particle board plant
at markel prices.
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Notes To The Accounts For The Year
Ended 30 September 2003

37. Date Of Authorisation

These accounts have been authorised far issue by the Board of Directors of the company on
December 29, 2003

38. Corresponding Figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and regrouped wherever necessary for the purpose of
companison, Mo significant reclassification has been made,

Figures have rounded off to the nearest thousand rupess.

ﬂuww Ir

o Losp o Bt
Chief Executive Diractor

i
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Pattern of Holding of Shares FORM 34
Held by Shareholders as at September 30, 2003
Nao. of Shareholding Total shares
Shareholders From To Held
219 1 100 7,724
230 101 500 &7,083
214 501 1,000 151,522
185 1,001 5,000 422,812
50 5.001 10,000 183237
e 10.001 15,000 283,721
13 15,001 20,000 220,830
13 20,001 25,000 253,129
T 25,001 30,000 197,208
B 30,001 35,000 254,232
¥ 35,001 40,000 31,570
7 40,001 45,000 308,459
4 45,001 50,000 186,836
5 50,001 55,000 258,250
1 55,001 60,000 58,000
2 60,001 65,000 125,711
4 70,001 75,000 204360
3 #0,001 85,000 250,578
d 85,001 90,000 355,128
1 90,001 85,000 95,000
1 95,001 100,000 o5, 727
1 105,001 110,000 106,933
1 110,001 115,000 111,868
1 115,001 120,000 117,500
1 120,001 125,000 124,000
1 140,001 145,000 141,420
1 150,001 155,000 152,356
1 155,001 160,000 157 506
2 165,001 170,000 237,170
1 180,001 185,000 180,074
1 185,001 190,000 186,432
1 200,001 205,000 204,105
1 250,001 235,000 233,181
1 280,001 285,000 281,300
1 285,001 300,000 206,500
1 325,001 330,000 325,444
1 330,001 335,000 334,540
1 425,001 430,000 427 265
1 775,001 780,000 779,286
1 815,001 820,000 616,865
1 1,245,001 1,350,000 1,347 483
1 1,385,001 1,400,000 1,395,916
1 1,815,001 1,820,000 1.915496
1 2,850,001 2,855,000 2,850,416
1 3,230,001 3,235,000 3,230,608
1 8,650,001 8,885,000 8,693,757
1,036 29,286,027
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Pattern of Holding of Shares
Held by Shareholders as at September 30, 2003

Categanies of Sharohalder Sharos Held Thage
al Direciors, Chiof Executive Officer, Thalr Spowss and Childarn
Mir. Ahsan M. Sadesm 180 6248 a2
e, Khaked Bamhir 2518 oo
K. Mazhar Karim ZraiB ¥ -]
&, Muhamemad Arrear {CDG) T.788 [ kuk]
ir. Muhasmmad Asshad 0023 AT
M. Tamser Khabd Baghis 64,802 22
M. Shakeiar A Saloem 12547 (04
5921 118
] fssociatod Compankes, Undartakings & Relatod Pantivg
Crnpsean] Boards Limiled 176 256 bl -]
oo Fowndalion 141,420 [FEE
Crrsoent Invpstmant Bark Limded 100 [=Xe]
Crescont Jule Producis Limated 167,200 a5t
Cretcont Sleel & Atipd Products Limilod 2850516 a7l
Cresicant Sugar hilla & Distllery Limiled 1815406 Bk
First Standd Invesimens Bard Limiled (COC) 195,200 o043
Mty Enaegy {p) L3d (S0C) B1,656 028
Jubding Spinning & Waaving Mils Limsed B16BHS 270
Salavway Motusl Funsd Lirstod {CDCY 1.3eb 06 £77
Thi Crescent Taxtie Ml Lia JE 64E 18.03
Tha Prermiar Insurance Co.of Pakistan Lid [CDC) 74,000 .25
Trusi Investment Bank Limited (S0GC) 1,547 263 4 B0
42,926,796 44,14
&) HIT & ICP [Mame Wise Detail)
Mrreatrieny Cinpration of Paidsian 7,057 ood
investment Corpration of Pakisian 10295 (oo
irnvgeatren] Comporation OF Palkistan (C0C) 2478 o
National Baak Of Pakistan [Trusies Depit ) (COC) BE.TET Loy
HMational Bank Of Palisten-Truston Wing m Qi
87333583 Fick 1
d} Banks, DF's, NBFI's ITHO04T 128
o inswrance Companies iFal Q.00
1} Modaraba and Mutual Funds 06,507 &or
ab Crihver Companies: TraAeF TES
LH Man Resident 157 aod
i General Pubdie 5800012 1883
0,206 02T 102,00
Sharohalders More Than 10000%
Mational Bark Of Pakistan (Trestes DaplL) (CDC) 8,693,757 2060
The: Crascent Textfe Mils Lireted [CDE) 3,210,548 1.03
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

)
R

MOTICE is hereby given o all the Members of SHAKARGANJ MILLS LIMITED (the “Company”) that the
36th Annual General Meeling of the Company will be held an Thursday, 29 January 2004 a1 11.00 a.m. at
Fearl Conlinental Hotel, Shahrah-e-Ouald-e-Azam, Lahore, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. Tao confirm the minutes of the proceedings of the 35® Annual General Meeting of the Company.
2. Ta receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ and Auditors” reporis and Audited Accounts for the year
ended September 30, 2003,
- 3. To consider and approve the payment of cash dividend @@ fifteen percent (15%), i.e. Rs.1.50 per
¥ share, for the year ended September 30, 2003 as recommended by the Directors of the Company.
4. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration.

Special Business:

1. Investment in Associated Undertaking
To consider and, if thought fit, 1o pass the following resolution as a spacial resclution under Saction
208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the “Crdinance”):

“IT 1S HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

(1) The approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to invest an amaunt of Rs. 20,000,000
(Rupees twenly million only) through purchase of ordinary shares of the said value of Crescent
Steel and Allied Products Limited ("Crescent Steal™), an associated undertaking of the Company.

Bt (2] The lerms and conditions of the proposed invesiment are as follows:
Marre of the investee company Crescenl Steel and Allsd |
2 Products Limited ("CSAPL")
(i} Maturs, amount and extant of iInvestment. {Rupees in million) 20
(it} Average market price of the shares intended o be
purchased during the preceding sis (8] months. {Rupees) 7763
iy Break up value of shares intended o be purchased on
the basis of last published financial statements. (Rupees) 57.86
{iv) Price at which shares will be purchased. {Rupees) Market Value
v} Earning per share of the investee company in las!
—_— threa (3) years (Rupeas):
k¥ 2001 27
2002 6.9
2003 14.2
{vi} Source of funds from where shares will be purchased, Own Sources
{wii} Period for which investment will be madea. Leng Term
{wiiiy Purpase of investment, Balanced diversification
{ix) Benefits likely 1o accrue to the Company and the To receive dividends that will
sharehalders from the proposed investmeants, increase profitability of the
potential capital gains that would
= = increase shareholder value,
L4
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{3}  The Chief Exacutive of the Company be and is hereby autharized to singly do all acts, deads
and things and take any or all necessary actions to purchase/acquire the ordinary shares of
Crescent Steel and to dispose off the shanes so purchasedfacquired as he thinks fit on behalf of
the Company,”

2, Increase in Authorised Share Capital
To consider and, i thought fit, to pass the following rasclution under Section 92 (2) of the Ordinance:
“It Is Hereby Resoived That;

{1} The authorised share capital of the Company be and is hereby increased from Rs.500,000,000
(Rupeas five hundred million aaly} to Rs.1,000.000,000 (Rupees one billion only).

{2}  The Clause Vof ihe Memorandum of Association of ihe Company be and is hereby aliered as
folbows:

The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs.1,000,000,000 (Rupees one billion only)
divided into 50,000,000 (fifty milllon) ordinary shares of Rs 10 (Rupees ten only) each, and
50,000,000 (fifty million) preference share of Rs.10 (Rupees ten only) each, with the power to
increase or reduce the capital and 1o divide the shares in the capital for the time being into
several classes in accordance with the provizions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and any
rules made thereundar, and to altach thereto respectively such preferential, deferred, qualified
of spacial rights, privilages or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance with the
Articles of Association or the Regulations of the Company for the time being, and to vary,
muadify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may for the time
being be provided by the Arlicles of Association or Regulations of the Company.,

3 Changes in Memorandum and Articles of Association
To consider and, if thought fit, lo pass the following resclution as a special resclution, with or without
modification;

“It ts Hereby Resolved That:

{1}  Theapproval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to alter the Memorandum of Association
and Arlicles of Associalion of the Company, as per the altached black-lined drat.

(2] The Chief Executive and Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized o
do all acts, deeds and things, take any or all nacassary actions to complate all tegal formalities
and file ail necessary documents as they think fit on behalf of the Company.”

4. Issuance of Preference shares
To congider, and if thouwght fit, 1o pass the following rasolution as a special resolution, wilth or without
modification, under Rule 5 of the Companies Share Capital (Variation in Rights and Privileges) Rules,
2000:

i
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“It Is Hereby Resolved That;

(1

Subject to the prior approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the "SECE™),
the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to lssue 49,788,244 (forty nine miltion
sevien hundred eighty six thousand two hundred forty four) preference sharas of Rs. 10 (Rupess
ten only) sach, in tha manner and mode provided in Seclion 86 of the Ordinance and on the
following terms and conditions:

(a) 24,893,122 (twenty four million eight hundred ninaty three thousand one hundred twenly
two) preference shares be and are hereby offered to the exisling shareholders of the
Company at the ratio of eighty-five (85) preference shares for evary hundred (100} ardinary
shares held by them as on the date 1o be announced separately after approval of the
SECP.

(B) The remaining 24,893,122 (twenty four million eight hundred ninaty three thousand one
hundred twanty two) preference shares be and are heraby offered to the Banks and financial
institutions without offering the existing shareholders of the Company, on the date o be
announced separately after approval of the SECP,

(c} The preference sharehalders shall not be entitied to;

i} receive notice of, attend or vote at the meetings of the sharehalders of the Company,
except as otherwise provided by the Ordinance, whereby the haolders of such shares
would be enfitied o vole separately as a class, i.e., with respect to the voling entillemant
af preference shareholders on matlersfissues affecting their respeclive substantial
rights ar liabililies.

(M)  benus or right shares, in case the Company decides fo Increase the capital of the
Company by issue of further shares.

{iiij participate any further in the profit or assets of the Company, excepl the right of
dividend being attached to the preference shares as per this resolution.

{iv) without prejudice to the foregaoing, the preference sharehaolders of the Company may
altend the genearal meetings of the Company as observers with permission of the
Chairman of the meeling.

{d) The Company may convert the preferance shares into ordinary shares as undar:

Par value of preferenca share i.e. Rs, 10/ (30 days average price of odinary shares
x {1+0.20)),

Example: if 30 days average price of odinary shares = Rs. 33, then the conversion
ratio will be as under;

1033 % (1#0.20)) = 0.25 .2 a person holding 4 praferance shares will get 1 ordinary share
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(g} The preference shares ane to be redeemed after five {5) years of ssuance/alictment, subject
to the conversion option as exencised by preference shareholders, as per sub-ciauso (d)
abave. However if the Company fails 1o pay dividend to its preference shareholders during
Iher entirer tenure of five (5) vears, the preference shares and the unpaid cumulative dividend
shall be converad into ardinary shares at formula given in (1) (d).

{f} The praferance shares shall have a prefermed dividend up bo eight and half parcent (8.5%) per
anrum as may be delermined by the Board of Directors of the Company on a cumulative basis.

(Z)  The Chief Execulive or such one or more persons as may from lime to tima be specifically
designated by him for the purpose, be and isfare hereby authorised to undertake arrangements
for issuance of preference shares and sellle the terms and condilions with the arranger(s),
underwriters{s), and any and all other party(ies) concemed as and when necessary in this
ragard, and to take such action as he'they may consider necessary or expedient with a view lo
abtaining their consent and for facifitating the eventual issue and all sanclions, approvals, and
permissions that may be required in connection with the aforesaid maltes and in that connection
to do all such acts, deeds and things as necessary.”

By Order of the Board

C
Tari-t; Aleam

Company Secratary

Participation In The Annual General Meeting

1

Any member of the Company enlilled lo allend and vole at this mesting of the Company shall be
entitlad to appoint any other member as hisfher proxy to attend and vate instead of him, and a proy
s0 appainted shall have the rights to speak and vole at the meeting as are available io the member,

The Instrument appointing a praxy and the power of attomey or olher awlhodly wnder which it is
signed or a notarially atlested copy of the power of atiomey must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company al leas! 48 hours before the time of meeting

Members, who have deposited iheir shares into Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Limiled, are
Being advised to bring their National [dentity Card along with COC Participant 1D and account number
al the meating venue. If any proxies are granted by any such shareholders, the same must be
accompanied with attested coples of the National ldesitity Cards of the granior and the signature on
the proxy forms should be the same as appearing on the MNational [dentity Cards,
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Book Closure

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 21 January 2004 to 29 January
2004 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order al the Registered Office of the Company up 1o
the close of business on 20 January 2004, will be considered in time to be aligible for payment of final
dividend to the transfereas.

Statement Under Section 160 (1) (b} of the Companies Ordinance, 1984

The following siatement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be ransacted at the
36" Annual General Meeting of Shakarganj Mills Limited (the “Company™) to be held on 29 January 2004.

A, Investment in Associated Undertaking

1. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board™), at thelr meeting held on [29 Decembar 2003},
considered that due 1o strong performance of the capital market and good payout history of Crescent
Sieal and Allied Products Limited ("CSAPLT), an associated undentaking of the Company, the Company
will benefit form investing in CSAPL.

Z In view of the above, the Board resohved unanimously to approve, and place before the shareholders
at their general meeting for approval by special resolution, the proposad investment of Rs.20,000,000
{Rupeas twanty million only) in the crdinary shares of CSAPL.

3 Following are the material facts about the proposed special resclution:

Mame of the investes company Crescent Stael and Allied
Products Limited ("CSAPL")
)] Mature, amount and exten? of investment. {Rupees in million) 20
)] Mature, amount and extent of investment. (Rupees in million) 20
{ii} Average market price of tha shares intended 1o be
purchased during the preceding six (6) months. (Rupees) 7763
{iii) Break up value of shares intended to be purchased
on the basis of last published financial stalemeants. (Rupees) 5786
{iv) Price at which shares will be purchased. (Rupees) Markel Valuse
(v Source of funds from where shares will be purchased. Ouwn Sourcas
{wi) Period for which investmant will be made. Lang Term
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Increase In Authorised Share Capital

The Board, at their meeting held on 29 December 2003, considered that:

{1} the present authorised share capital of the Company and its division Inte 8 sole category of
ordinary shares is insufficient to meet the financing needs of the Company: and

{2} by virue of the recent amendment in Section %0 of the Ordinance and the introduction of the
Companies Share Capital (Variation in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 2000, the Comparny has
been allowed to have different kinds and classes of share capital with different rights and
privileges attachad theveto.

In view of the above, the Board resohved unanimausly 1o approve, and place before the shareholders
al their general meeting for approval by special resalution, the proposed increase in the authorised
share capital of the Company and the inclusion of preference shares in its capital struclure, and the
alterations of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association resulting from the same,

A black-lined copy of the proposed amendments o the Memarandum and Aricles of Association of
the Company is annexed hereto.

Changes In Memorandum And Articles Of Association

The Board, at their meling held on [29 Decermber 2003], considered that due to the recent amendments
in the Companies Ordinancea, 1584 (the *Ordinance”) through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance,
2002, and the introduction of new company laws, including but not limited to the Central Depositories
Act, 1987 and the rules made theraunder, the Code of Corporate Governance, the Electronic
Transaclions Ordinance, 2002, the Companies (Buy-Back of Shares) Rules, 1999, and the Companies
Share Capital (Variation in Rights and Priviieges) Rules, 2000, certain clauses in the Memaorandum
and Asticles of Association of the Company need 1o be attered.

In view of tha above, the Board resolved unanimously fo approve, and place before the sharehalders
at their general maeeting for approval by special resolution, the proposed amendments to Clause V of
the Memorandum of Association and the Ardicles of Association of the Company so as fo bring the
Company's abjects and its business in line with the new legaliregulatory requirements.

A black-lined copy of the proposed amendmaents to the Memorandum and Arlicles of Association of
the Company is annexed heneto.

lssue Of Preference Shares

The: Board, at their meating held on 20 Decembar 2003, considered thal:
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{a) the Company has been enabled by the recent amendment in Section 90 of the Ordinance and the
introduction of the Companies Share Capital (Varialion in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 2000 to
issue [ allot different kinds and classes of shares wilh different rights, restrictions and privileges
altached thereto as per the altered Articles of Association of the Company. and

(&) the issue and subscription of preference shares of the Company can be utilised 1o meelt the resource
gap of Rs. 497 862,440 (Rupees four hundred ninety sovan millian eight hundrad sixty two thousand
four hundred forty only) arising due 1o repayment af its TFC | and TFC Il of the Company.

2, In view of ihe above, subject 10 the prior approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
¥ Pakistan, the Board rasolved unanimousty to approve, and place before the shareholders at thele
general meeting for approval by special rasolution, the issue of 49,786,244 (forty nine milion seven
hundred eighty six thousand two hundred forty four only) preference shares of Rs.10 (Rupees len
only) @ach as per the terms of the resalution,

The Directors of the Company have no interest in the special businesses and/ or special resolutions,
save {o the extent of their shareholding in the Company or that some of the Directors and their relatives
are also direclors in CSAPL

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company as an date-and also indicating
e the proposed amendments is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company from
9.00 a.m. 10 5.00 p.m. on any working day,
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Form Of Proxy

Folio Mo, CODC Participant's 1.0. No, ASC Nio.

1'We of

a member(s) of Shakarganj Mills Limited, and halder of shares
do hereby appoint of or failing himy
her of who is also a member of
the company, vide Registered folio/COC Participant 1.0, No. as myfour proxy (o

attend, speak and vote for melus and on my/our behalf at the 36° Annual General Meeting of
Shakarganj Mills Limited to be held on Thursday, the January 24, 2004 at 11:00 a.m. at Pearl

Continental Hotel, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahare and at any adjournment theraof,

As wilness mylour hand this = day of 2004,

Signalure on

Five Rupees
Revenua Stamp

The signature should agree
Dated: with the specimen registered

Place: with the Company

Motes:

E The Proxy Form should be deposited at aur Registered Office, Unfi # 6, Happy Homes, 38-A-3 Main
Gulberg, Lahore, not less then 48 hours bafore the lime of halding the meeling and in defaull, the
Proxy Form will not be treated as valid,

2. Noperson shall act as prosy uniess hashe is a mamber of the Company except a corporation being a
member may appoint as ils proxy any officer of such corporation whether a meamber of the Company or nef.
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Affix
Comact
| Postage

The Company Secretary
Shakarganj Mills Limited
Unit # 6 Happy Homes,
3B-A-3 Main Gulberg,
Lahore - Pakistan

SO

—

—
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